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AUDITORS' REPORT TO THE MEMBERS

We have audited the annexed statement of financial position of AlBaraka Bank (Pakistan) Limited
(the Bank) as at 31 December 2013, and the related profit and loss account, statement of
comprehensive income, cash flow statement and statement of changes in equity together with the
notes forming part thereof (here-in-after referred to as the 'financial statements’) for the year
then ended, in which are incorporated the unaudited certified returns from the branches except
for nine branches which have been audited by us and we state that we have obtained all the
information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for
the purposes of our audit. '

it is the responsibility of the Bank’s Board of Directors to establish and maintain a systemn of
internal control, and prepare and present the financial statements in conformity with approved
accounting standards and the requirements of the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 {LVH of
1962), and the Companies Ordinance, 1984 (XLVIi of 1984). Our respensibiiity is to express an
opinion on these statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the international Standards on Auditing as applicabie in
Pakistan. These standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free of any material misstatement. An audit
includes examining on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting policies and significant
estimates made by management, as wel! as, evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion and after due
verification, which in case of loans and advances covered more than sixty percent of the total
toans and advances of the Bank, we report that: ’
{a) inour opinion, proper books of accounts have been kept by the Bank as required by the
Companies Ordinance, 1984 (XLVII of 1984) and the returns referred to above received
from the branches have been found adequate for the purposes of our audit;

(b)  in our opinion:

(i) the statement of financial position and profit and lass account together with the
notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Banking Companies
Ordinance, 1962 (LVII of 1962), and the Companies Ordinance, 1984 (XLVH of
19843, and are in agreement with the books of account and are further in
accardance with accounting policies consistently applied except for the changes as
stated in note 5.1 to the financial statements, with which we concul; .

(jii) the expenditure incurred during the year was for the purpose of the Bank's
business; and

(iiid  the business conducted, investments made and the expenditure incurred during the
' year were in accordance with the objects of the Bank and the transactions of the
Bank which have come to our notice have been within the powers of the Bank;
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(c) inour opinion, and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given fo
us the statement of financial position, profit and loss account, statement of comprehensive
income, cash flow statement and statement of changes in equity together with the notes
forming part thereof conform with approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan
and give the information required by the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 (LVII of
1962), and the Companies Ordinance, 1984 (XLVIl of 1984), in the manner so required
and give a true and fair view of the state of the Bank’s affairs as at 31 December 2013 and
its true balance of the ioss, comprehensive [oss, its cash flows and changes in equity for the
year then ended; and

{d) in our opinion Zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIlI
of 1980) was deducted by the Bank and deposited in the Central Zakat Fund established
under section 7 of that Ordinance.

We draw attention to note 1.2 to the financial statements. As more fully explained in the said
note, the banks are required by the State Bank of Pakistan (SBP) to have a minimum paid up
capital (net of losses) of Rs 10 billion as of 31 December 2013, whereas the the Bank's paid up
capital (net of losses) amounts fo Rs. 5,830.76 million. In this regard, the SBP has allowed the
Bank to meet the capital requirement in a phased manner as per the recapitalization plan of the
Bank subject to certain conditions as stated in the said note. Our opinion is not gualified in
respect of this matter.

I~ N A SN e
Chartered Accountants

Audit Engagement Partner: Arslan Khalid
Date: 05 March 2014

Karachi
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ALBARAKA BANK (PAKISTAN) LIMITED

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2013

2013 2012 2011
Note {Rupees '000)--cmme ..
51 Restated Restated
ASSETS
Cash and halances with treasury banks 5,727,407 4,221,381 3,845,481
Balances with other banks 7 16,565,377 6,712,477 7,577,186
Due from financial institutions - 1,100,000 -
Investments 8 22,161,963 27,421,481 26,179,416
Islamic financing and related assets 9 37,020,644 28,782,448 20,155 476
Operating fixed assets 10 2,725,753 2,629,176 2,798,165
Deferred tax assets 11 1,431,064 1,292,138 1,030,852
Other assets 12 2,127,196 1,707,476 1,858,488
. 87,759,404 73,866,558 72,545,064
LIABILITIES .
Bills payable 13 725,609 746,651 451,030
Due to financial institutions 14 2,201,945 1,991,738 1,736,120
Deposits and other accounts 15 75,647,097 63,278,655 61,559,028
Sub-ordinated loans 16 1,158,571 - -
Liabilities against assets subject lo finance lease - - 5,123
Deferred tax liabilities - - -
Other liabilities 17 2,177,989 1,830,054 2,269,097
81,911,211 67,847,008 66,020,396
NET ASSETS 5,848,193 6,019,460 5,524 668
REPRESENTED BY
Share capital 18 8,935,200 8,935,200 8,035,200
Discount cn issuance of shares (767,250} (767,290) {767,290)
Reserves 82,074 82,074 82,074
Accumutated loss (2,419,224) (2,368,938) (1.723,543)
5,830,760 5,881,046 6,526,441
Surplus / (Deficif) on revaluation of assets - net of tax 19 17,433 138,414 (1,773)
5,848,193 6,019,460 6,524,668
CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 20
The annexed notes from 1 to 47 form an integral part of these fnancial statements.
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ALBARAKA BANK (PAKISTAN) LIMITED
PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

Note
5.1
Prrofit / return earned on islamic financing and related assels,
investments and placements 21
Return an deposits and other dues expensed 22
Met spread earned
Provision against non-performing islamic financing and related assets - nel 9.6
Provision for diminution in the value of investments 8.31
Bad debts wrilten off directly
Nel spread after provisions
Other income
Fee, commission and brokerage income
Dividend income
Income from dealing in foreign curencies
Gain / {loss) on sale of securities - net 23
Unrealized gain / (loss) on revaluation of investments
classified as held for trading
Other income 24
Total other income
Other expenses
Adminislrative expenses 25
Other provisions / write offs 253
Other charges 26
Total other expenses
Exira ordinary / unusual items
L.OSS BEFORE TAXATION
Taxation - Current
- Prior years
- Deferred
27
LLOS3 AFTER TAXATION
Basis / diluted loss per share (Rupea) 28
The annexed notes from 1 o 47 farm an integral part of thase financial statements.
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2013 2012
---------- {Rupees "000)---~—mmeun
Restated

6,131,232 6,271,340
4,340,094 4,725 24¢
1,791,138 1,545,891
67,143 749,888
103,990 52,603
171,133 802 491
1,620,005 743,400
280,884 243,006
218,867 154,520
64,903 {5.406)
28,876 14,031
593,530 406,151
2,213,515 1,149,551
2,118,611 1,994,544
109,828 111,360
18,696 60
2,247 137 2,105 964
{33,602} (956,413)
(33,602) (956,413)
(67,248) {33,388)
59,619 344,861
(7,629) 311,473
{41,231} {644,940}
{0.05) {0.72)
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ALBARAKA BANKH (PAKISTAN) LIMITED
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2043

2013 2012
Note el {Rupees ‘000)-----xme-2
Restated
L.oss for the year - after taxation (41,231) {644,940)
Other comprehensive income / {loss)
ftems not to be reclassified to profit or lass in subsequent periods:
Remeasurement of defined benefit plan N {13,930} {699)
Income: lax effect 4,875 245
{9,055} (454)
Total comprehensive loss for the year {50,286) (645,394)

As per the requirement of the State Bank of Pakistan, surplus / deficit on revaluation of available-for-sale securities is required o be
. taken lo a separate account 'Surplus / deficit on revaluation of assets' shown in the statement of financial position below equity.
Accoerdingly, it has not been recognized as olher comprehensive income / expense

The annexed notes from 1 1o 47 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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ALBARAKA BANK {PAKISTAN) LIMITED

CASH FLOW STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

l.oss before taxation

Adjustments for non-cash and other items:
Depreciation
Depreciation on ijarah assets held under IFAS 2
Amortisation
Leasehold renovation written-off
Provigion against non-performing islamic financing and related assets-net
Provicion for diminution in the value of investments
{Reversal of provision) / provision against other assels
Gain on sale of operating fixed assels

(Increasie) / decrease in operating assets
e from financial instituticns

Hlamic financing and related assets-net
Others assets

Increase / {decrease) in operating liabilities
Bills payabie
Due to financial instilutions
Deposits and other accounts
Other liabilites

Income tax paid
Net cash inflow from operating activities

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Net disposals / (additions) to investmenis

Mel investiments in operating fixed assets

Received on disposal of operating fixed assets

Net cash inflow / (outflow) from investing activities

SH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
-ordinated loans

Payment of lease obitgation

Net cash inflow / (outflow) from financing activities

Net increase f (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

The annexed notes from 1 to 47 form an inlegral part of these financial statemenis.

v

et

} . ;
g 2o I s
Chief Ex W Director

Director

2013 2012
Note  ----eeee- (Rupees '000)---mcc—
Restated
{33,602) {956,413)
111,907 104,529
865,104 854,978
89,297 85,316
9101 -
67,143 749,888
103,990 52,603
(25,113) 48,441
{9,449) {8,542}
1,211,980 1,927 213
1,178,378 970,800
1,100,000 (1,100,000)
{9,170,443) (1,271,839
{414,105) 146,508
(8,484,548) (2,225,331)
{21,042) 205,821
210,207 255,618
12,368,442 1,718,629
347,935 {439,043)
12,905,542 1,831,825
{61,680) {78.024)
5,537,692 499,270
4,960,096 (1,070,643)
{304,024) (23,761)
6,591 11,448
4,662,663 {1,082 956)
1,158,571 -
- (6,123)
1,158,571 {5,123}
11,358,926 {5688.809)
10,933,858 11,522,667
29 22,292 784 10,933,858
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ALBARAKA BANK {PAKISTAN) LIMITED
STATEMENT OF GHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

Balance as at 01 January 2012
Effect of relrospective change in accounting policy

for actuarial gains and losses on defined benefit
plan as referred in note 5.1 - net of tax

‘Iance: as at 01 January 2012 - Restated

Loss for the year - Restaled
Other comprehensive loss - Restaled

Balance as at 31 December 2012 - Restated

t.oss for the year
Other comprehensive loss

Total comprehensive loss for the year

Balance as at 31 December 2013

* This represents reserve created under section 21(1}{a) of the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1062.

The annexed notes from 1 to 47 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Issued,
subscribed Discount on
and paid-up issuance of Statutory Accumulated
share capital shares Reserve * loss Total
{Rupees in '000)

8,935,200 (767,280) 82,074 (1,723,728) 6,526,256
- - - 164 184

8,935,200 (767,290) 82,074 {1,723,544) 6,526,440
. - - {644 ,940) (644,940
- - - (464) {454
- - - (645,394) (645,394

8,935,200 {767,290) 82,074 (2,368,938) 5,681,046
- - - {41,231} (41,231)
- - - {9,055} (9,055)
- - - {50,286} (50,286)

8,935,200 {767,290) 82,074 {2,419,224) 5,830,760
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1.1

1.2

ALBARAKA BANK (PAKISTAN) LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2013

LEGAL STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS

AlBaraka Bank {Pakistan) Limited (the Bank) was incorporated in Pakistan on 20 Decemnber 2004 as a public limited company
under the Companies Ordinance, 1984.

The main objective of the Bank is to carry on Islamic banking business in Pakistan in accordance and in conformity with
Shariah. The Bank was granted an Islamic Banking License BL(i)-01(07), issued by the Banking Policy and Regulations
Department of the State Bank of Pakistan {SBP) vide its letter no. BPRD (LCGD-02)/625-76/D/2007/521 dated 18 January
2007 under section 27 of the Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 read with Istamic Banking Department circular no. 2 of
2004. Subsequently, the Bank was also granted approval for commencement of business as a scheduled bank with effect from
13 February 2007 by the SBP vide its letter no. BPRD (LCGD-02)/625-76/X/JD/2007/1269 dated 12 February 2007. Upon
merger of the Pakistan branches of AlBaraka Isiamic Bank B.S.C. {c) with and into the Bank, fresh license no. BL{}-01(2011}
was issued by SBP vide its letter no. BPRD (R&P-01)/2011-3087 dated 12 March 2011, effective from close of business on 29
October 2010.

The Bank is a subsidiary of AlBaraka Isiamic Bank B.S.C. (c) (AlBaraka) incorporated and domiciled in Bahrain (the parent
bank) and a member of AlBaraka Banking Group.

The Bank's registered office is located at 162, Bangalore Town, Main Sharah-e-Faisal, Karachi. The Bank operaies 110
branches inciuding 2 sub-branches (2012: 84 branches including 2 sub-branches) in Pakistan.

Based on the financial statements of the Bank for the year ended 31 December 2012, Pakistan Credit Rating Agency Limited
(PACRA) has determined the Bank's long-term rating at "A" and short term rating as 'At". JCR-VIS, has also determined long-
term and short-term ratings of "A" and 'A1' respectively with a stable outiook.

As per the requirements of SBP, the banks/DFis are required to have a minimum paid up capital (net of lcsses) of Rs 10 billion
as of 31 December 2013. Further the banks / DFls are also required to maintain a capital adequacy ratio of 10% at all times.

In order to meet the regulatory capital requirements, the Bank has prepared a capitalization plan which was submitted to SBP.
The SBP vide its letter no. BPRD/BAGCPIG08/019652/2013 dated 28 December 2013 has allowed the Bank 1o proceed with
the plan as follows: :

) The Bank is required to maintain a minimum paid up capital (net of losses) {(MCR) of at least Rs. 6 billion at all times and
will have to meet the full MCR of Rs 10 billion by 31 December 2016.

iiy As a shortterm arrangement, the Bank has been allowed to raise a foreign currency sub-ordinated debt of Rs. 1,158.571
million (USD 11 million) from ifs sponsor (AlBaraka). The said sub-ordinated debt has been deposited as non-
remunerative deposit with SBP.

iy The above foreign currency deposit with the SBP shall be increased to Rs. 2.1 billion by 31 December 2014 and Rs. 2.8
biliion by 31 December 2015.

iv) The foreign currency sub-ordinated debt will not be withdrawn unless the Bank achieves full compliance with MCR.
However any withdrawal will be subject to prior approval of the SBP. In the event the Bank is not MCR complaint by 31
December 2016, the sub-ordinated debt will be converted into the paid up capital of the Bank.

v) For regulatory purposes, the foreign currency sub-ordinated debt is allowed to be inciuded in the Bank's capital and the
Bank wilt be required to maintain a capital adequacy ratio (CAR) of at least 16% which may be reduced depending on the

level of increase in the MCR.

As of 31 December 2013, the Bank’s paid up capital (net of losses) amounts to Rs. 5,830.76 and the CAR stands at 11.97%.

BASIS OF PRESENTATION

These financial statements have been prepared in conformity with the format of financial statements prescribed by the SEP
vide BSD Circular No. 04 dated 17 February 20086.

The Bank provides istamic financing mainly through shariah compliant financial products, Except for Murabaha transactions
(which are accounted for under the Islamic Firancial Accounting Standard - 1), the purchases and sales arising under these
arrangements are not reflected in these financial statements as such but are restricted to the amount of facility actually utilised
and the appropriate portion of rental / profit thereon. Income, if any received, which does nat comply with the principles of
Shariah is recognised as charity payable.

oo
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5.1

ALBARAKA BANK (PAKISTAN) LIMITED

STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with approved accounting standards as applicable in
Pakistan. Approved accounting standards comprise of such international Financial Repoerting Standards (IFRS) issued by
the International Accounting Standards Board and Islamic Financial Accouriting Standards (IFAS) issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan as are notified under the Companies Ordinance, 1984, the requirements of the
Companies Ordinance, 1984, Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 or directives issued by the Securilies and Exchange
Commission of Pakistan (SECP) and the State Bank of Pakistan (SBP). Wherever the requirements of the Companies
Ordinance, 1984, Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 or directives issued by the SECP and the SBP differ with the
reguirements of IFRS or IFAS, the requirements of the Companies Crdinance, 1984, Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962
or the requirements of the said directives prevait.

The SBP vide BSD Circular No. 10 dated 256 August 2002 has deferred the applicability of International Accounting Standard
39, "Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement” (IAS 39) and international Accounting Standard 40, "Investment
Property” (IAS 40) for banking companies till further instructions. Further, according to the notification of SECP dated 28
April 2008, the IFRS - 7 "Financial Instruments: Disclosures” has not been made applicable for banks. Accordingly, the
requirements of these standards have not been considered in the preparation of these financial statements. However,
investments have been classified and valued in accordance with the requirements of various circulars issued by the SBP.

BASIS OF MEASUREMENT

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for certain investments which
have been carried at fair value.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are consistent with those of the previous
financial year except as described below:

New and amended standards

The Bank has adopted the following revised standard, amendments and interpretation of IFRSs which became effective
during the year:

IAS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements — Presentation of items of other comprehensive income (Amendment) .

IAS 19 - Employee Benefits — (Revised)
IFRIC 20 - Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface Mine

Improvements to Accounting Standards Issued by the IASB

IAS 1 — Presentation of Financial Statements - Clarification of the reduirements for comparative information
IAS 16 —Property, Plant and Equipment — Clarification of Servicing Equipment

IAS 32 — Financial Instruments: Presentation — Tax Effects of Distribution to Holders of Equity Instruments
IAS 34 — Interim. Financial Reporting — Interim Financial Reporting and Segment Information for Total
Assets and Liabilities

The adoption of the above revision and amendments of the standards did not have any effect on these financia! statements
except for as described in note 5.1 below:

Change in accounting policy

During the year, the Bank has adopted Revised IAS 19 - ‘Employee Benefits’. As per revised standard, actuarial gains and
losses for defined benefit plans are recognized in other comprehensive income when they occur. Amounts recorded in profit
and loss are fimited to cument and past service costs, gains or losses on settlements, and net interest income {expense). All
other changes in the net defined benefit asset (liability) are recognized in other comprehensive income with no subseguent
recycling to profit and loss.

The adoption of above revised standard has resulted in change in accounting policy of the Bank retated to recognition of
actuarial gains and losses to recognise actuarial gains and losses in total in other comprehensive income in the period in
which they occur. Previously, actuarial gains or losses in excess of 10% of the actuarial liability or plan assets were
recognised in profit and loss account over the expected average working fife of the employees. The impact of the said

changes on these financial statements is as under:

R



5.2

63

ALBARAKA BANK (PAKISTAN) LIMITED

2013 2012 2011
-------- {Rupess in '000}--eumem-
Impact on statement of financial position
Increase / (Decrease) in other assets (20,309) (3.834) 283
(Decraase) / Increase in deferred tax assets 7,108 1,342 {99)
Decrease / (Increase) in accumulated losses - net of tax (13,201} (2,492) 184
2013 2042

wnseeme{RUPEES IN '000)seerean
Impact on profit and loss account

Increase in administrative expenses 2,545 3,418
Increase in loss hefore taxation 2,548 3,418
Decrease in taxation 891 1,196
Increass in loss after taxation 1,654 2222
Increase in loss per share (Rs.) 0.0019 0.0025

Impact on statement of comprehensive Income

Decrease in loss for the year (1,654) (2,222}
Decrease in acluarial loss on defined benefit plan (13,930) (899)
Income tax effect 4,875 245
Decrease in total comprehensive loss for the year {10,709) (2,676)

IAS 19 (revised 2011) also requires more extensive disclosures. These have been provided in Note 31,
Cash and ¢ash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise of cash and balances with treasury banks and balances with other banks in current
and deposit accounts.

Investments

Investments are classified as follows:
{a) Held for trading

These are sacurities, which are either acquited for generating a profit from shori-term fiuctuations in market prices,
profit rate movements, dealers margin or are securities included in a portfolio in which a pattem of short-term profit
taking exists.

(b) Held to maturity

These are sacurities with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity in respect of which the Bank has the
positive intent and ability to hold to maturity.

{c} Available for sale

These are investments, other than those In subsidiaries and associales, that do not fall under the held for trading or
held to maturlty categories.

All purchases and sales of investments that require delivery within the time frame established by regulations or markel
convention are recognised at the trade date. Trade date Is the date on which the Bank commits to purchase or sell the
invastment.

Investments other than those categorised as held for trading are Initially recognised at fair value which includes transaction
costs assoclated with the investment. Investments classified as held for trading are initially recognised at fair value, and
transaction costs are expensed in the profit and loss account.

In accordance with the requirements of the State Bank. of Pakistan, quoted securilies / Government securities other than
those classified as 'held to malurlty', Investments in subsidiaries and investments in associates {(which qualify for accounling
under International Accounting Standard - 28), are subsequently re-measured to market value. Surplus / (deficit) arising on
revaluation of quoted securities classifled as ‘available for sale’, is taken to a separate account shown In the statement of
financlal position below equity. Surplus / (deficit) arising on revaluation of quoted securities which are classified as ‘held for
trading', is taken to the profit and loss account. Investments classified as 'held to maturity’ are carried at amertised cost.

LA
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5.4

5.5

5.6

ALBARAKA BANK (PAXISTAN) LIMITED

Unguoted equity securities are valued at the lower of cost and break-up value, Break-up value of equity securities is
calculated with reference to the net assets of the investee company as per the latest available financial statements. In cases
where the break up value of such shares is less than the cost, the difference of the cost and break up value is provided for
accordingly by charging to the profit and loss account.

Provision for diminution in the vaiues of securities (except sukuk certificates) is made after considering impairment, if any, in
their value and charged to profit and loss account. Provision for diminution in value of sukuk certificates is made as per the
requirements of the Prudential Regulations issued by the State Bank of Pakistan,

Investment in subsidiaries and assaociates are carried at cost less impairment in the value of such investments.

islamic financing and related assets

Islamic financing and related assets (advance, inventories etc.) are stated net of specific and general provisions against non-
performing islamic financing, if any, which are charged to the profit and loss account.

Under murabaha financing, funds disbursed for purchase of goods are recorded as 'advance against murabaha finance’. On
culmination of murabaha i.e. sale of goods to customers, murabaha financing are recorded at the deferred sale price net of
deferred profit. Goods purchased but remaining unsold at the statement of financial position date are recorded as
inventories.

ljarah financing booked on or after 01 January 2009 is accounted for as per the requirements of IFAS 2, whereby assefs
leased out under jjarah and depreciated over the term of ijarah and the related rental income is recognised in the profit and
loss account on an accrual basis.

ljarah financing booked before 01 January 2009 is accounted for as a finance lease whereby assets under ijarah
arrangements are presented as a receivable at an amount equal to net investment in ijarah. Unearned income |.e. excess of
aggregate rentals over the cost of the asset is recorded at the inception of the jjarah and is amortised over the term of the
ijarah so as to produce a constant rate of return on net investment in ijarah.

Specific provision against non-performing islamic financing is determined in accordance with the Prudential Regulations and
other directives issued by the SBP. The Bank maintains general reserve (provision) in accordance with the applicable
requirements of prudential reguiations for consumer finance and small and medium enterprise financing.

Istamic financing and related assets are written off when there is no realistic prospect of recovery.

Inventories

As stated in note 5.4 to these financial statements, goods purchased but remaining unsold (if any) at the statement of
financial position date are recorded as inventories. The Bank values its inventories at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost of inventories represents the actual purchase price paid by the customer as an agent on behalf of the Bank from
the funds disbursed for the purpose of culmination of murabaha.

The net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated cost necessary
to make the sale.

Operating fixed assets - Tangible

{a) Owned

Tangible fixed assets, other than iand, are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses
(if any). Land is stated at cost.

Depreciation is charged using the straight-line method in accordance with the rates specified in note 10.2 to these financial
statements and after taking into account residual value, if any. The residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods
are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate at each statement of financial position date. Depreciation on additions is charged
from the month the assets are available for use while no depreciation is charged in the month in which the assets are

disposed off.
Gains / losses on sale of fixed assets are credited / charged to the profit and loss account.

Subsequent costs are included in the assets' carrying amount and recognised as a separate asset as appropriate, only
when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Bank and the cost of the item can
be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to income as and when incurred.

R



5.7

. 5.8

5.9

ALBARAKA BANK (PAKISTAN) LIMITED

{b) Leased assets

Assets acquired under finance lease {in respect of contracts entered into before 01 January 2009) are stated at Jower of fair
value or present value of minimum jease payments at inception less accumulated depreciation. The outstanding obligation
under lease is shown as a liability net of finance charges allocable to future periods.

The finance charges are allocated to accounting periods in a manner so as to provide a constant periodic rate of return an
the outstanding liability.

Depreciation on assets held under finance lease is charged in a manner consistent with that for depreciable assets which
are owned by the Bank.

{c) Capital work in progress

Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. All expenditure connected with
specific assets incurred during installation and construction period are carried under capital work-in-progress. These are
transferred to specific assets as and when assets become available for use.

{d) impairment

The carrying amount of assets are reviewed at each reporting date for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amounts of the assets may not be recoverable. If such indication exists, and where
the carrying value exceeds the estimated recoverable amount, assets are written down to their recoverable amount. The
resulting impairment loss is taken to the profit and loss account.

Operating fixed assets - Intangible

intangible assets having a finite useful life are stated at cost less accumutated amortisation and accumulated impairment
losses, if any. intangible assets are amortised from the month, when these assets are available for use, using the straight
tine method, whereby the cost of the intangible asset is amortised on the basis of the estimated useful life over which
economic benefits are expected to flow to the Bank. The residual value, useful life and amortisation method are reviewed
and adjusted, if appropriate, at each statement of financial position date. Amortization rates are specified in note 10.3 to
these financial statements.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortized but tested for impairment annually, either individually or at the
cash-generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether the indefinite life
continues to be supportable. If not, the change in useful life from indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the profit and loss account when the asset is
derecognized.

Non-banking assets aquired in satisfaction of claims

These are initially measured at the settlement value assigned for the purpose of extinguishment of borrowers' liabilities.
Subsequent to initial recognition, these are carried at lower of their carrying values and fair values. Any resulting impairment
ioss is taken to profit and loss account . For subseguent increase in fair value, gain is recognized only to the extent it
reverses previously recognized impairment loss (if any).

Deposits

Deposits are generated on the basis of two modes i.e. Qard and Mudaraba. Deposits taken on Qard basis are classified as
'Current Accounts' and Deposits generated on Mudaraba basis are classified as 'Savings Account' and 'Fixed Deposit
Accounts'.

No profit or loss is passed on to current account depositors. Profits realized in pool are distributed in pre-agreed profit
sharing ratio. Rab-ul-Maal share is distributed among depositors according to weightages assigned at the inception of profit

calculation period.

Mudarib {the Bank) can distribute its share of profit to Rab-ui-Maal upto a maximum of 80% of its profit.

for
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510 Revenue recognition

- Profit on murabaha transactions is recognised on accrual basts. Profit on Murabaha transactions for the period from
the date of disbursement to the date of culmination of murabaha is recognized immediately upon the later date.

- Rental income on ijarah financing booked on or after January 1, 2009 is recognised on accrual basis

- The Bank follows the finance method in recognising income an ijarah contracts booked before 01 January 2009.
Under this method the unearned income i.e. the excess of aggregate ijarah rentals over the cost of the asset is
deferred and then amortised over the term of the ijarah, so as to produce a constant rate of return on net investment
in ijarah, Gains / losses on termination of ijarah contracts are recognised as income / expense on a receipt basis.
Income on ijarah is recognised from the date of delivery of the respective assets to the mustajir.

- Profit on diminishing musharaka is recognized on accruat basis.
- Profit on service ijara is recognized on accrual basis.

- Profit on Istisna is recognized on accrual basis commencing from the time of sale of goods till the realization of sale
proceeds by the Bank.

- Commission on letiers of credit, acceptances and ietters of guarantee is recognised on receipt basis.
- Dividend income is recognised when the Bank's right to receive the dividend is established.

- Profit from investment in sukuk is recognised on accrual basis. Premium and discoeunt on purchase of sukuk are
being amortized through profit and loss account over the remaining maturity.

. - Gains / losses on sale of investments is included in income currently.

- Income earned from Shariah non-compliant avenues is not recognised in the profit and loss account. This income is
classified as charity payable in accordance with the recommendation of the Shariah Advisor of the Bank.

- Profit suspended in compiiance with the Prudential Regulations issued by SBP is recorded on receipt basis.

511 Taxation
{=) Current

Provision for current taxation is based on taxable income at the current rates of taxation after taking into consideration tax
credits and rebates available, if any.

(b} Deferred

Deferred tax is recognised using the balance sheet liability method on all major temporary differences between the amounts
attributed to assets and fiabilities for financial reporting purposes and amounts used for taxation purposes. In addition, the
Bank also records deferred tax asset on available tax losses. Deferred tax is calculated at the rates that are expected to
apply to the period when the differences are expected to reverse, based on tax rates that have been enacted at the
statement of financial position date.

A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available against
which the asset can be utilised.

The carrying amount of deferred tax asset is reviewed at each staternent of financial position date and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be
utilised.

The Bank also recognises a deferred tax asset / liability on the deficit / surplus on revaluation of securities which is adjusted
against the related surplus / deficit in accordance with the requirements of the International Accounting Standard (1AS) 12,

'Income Taxes'.

512  Staff retirement benefits
{a) Defined benefit plan

The Bank operates an approved gratuity fund for all its confirmed employees, which is administered by the Trustees. The
Bank's costs and contributions are determined based on actuarial valuation carried out at each year end using Projected
Unit Credit Actuariat Method. All actuarial gains and losses are recognised in 'other comprehensive income’ as they occur
and are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods.

VTS
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(b) Defined contribution plan

The Bank also operates a recoghised contributory provident fund for all permanent employees. Equal monthly contributions
are made, both by the Bank and the employees, to the fund at a rate of 10 percent of basic salary.

Provisions, contingent assets and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Bank has a present legal or constructive obligation arising as a resuilt of past events
when it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a
reliable estimate of the amount of the obiigation can be made. Provisions are reviewed al each statement of financial
position date and are adjusted to reflect the current best estimates.

Contingent assets are not recognised unless inflow of economic benefits is virtually certain.

Contingent liabilities are not recognised and are disclosed uniess the probability of an outflow of resources embodying
economic benefits is remote.

Provision for guarantee claims and other off-balance sheet obligations

The Bank, in the ordinary course of business, issues letters of credit, acceptances, guarantees, bid bonds, performance
bonds etc. The commission against such contracts is recognized in the profit and loss account under "Fee, commission and
brokerage income” on receipt basis. The Bank's liability under such contracts is measured at the best estimate of the
amount expected to settle any financial cbligation arising under such contracts.

Functional and presentation currency

ltems inciuded in the financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which
the Bank operates. The financial statements are presented in Pakistani Rupees, which is the Bank's functional and

presentation currency.

Foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency transactions are translated into Pak Rupees at the exchange rates prevailing on the date of transaction.
Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into Pak rupees at the exchange rates prevailing at the
reporting date. Exchange gains or losses are included in profit and loss account currently.

Commitments

Commitments for outstanding forward foreign exchange contracts are translated at forward rates applicable to their
respective maturities. Contingent liabilities / commitments for letters of credit and letters of guaraniee denominated in
foreign currencies are translated into Pak Rupees at the exchange rates ruling on the reporting date.

Financial instruments
{(a) Financial assets and financial liabilities

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially recognized at the time when the Bank becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. These include regular way purchases or sales of financial assets that requires delivery of
assets within the time frame generally established by regulation or convention in the market place. Financial assets are de-
recognized when the contractual right to future cash flows from the asset expires or is transferred along with the risk and
rewards of ownership of the asset. Financial liabilities are de-recognized when obligation specified in the contract is
discharged, cancelled or expired. Any gain or loss on de-recognition of the financial assets and liabilities is recognized in the

profit and loss account of the current period.

{b) Off-setting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the financial statements when there is a
iegally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and there is an intention to setfle on a net basis, or to realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Earnings per share

The Bank presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) and basic and diluted loss per share for its shareholders.
Basic EPS / loss per share is calculated by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Bank by the
weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year. Dilited EPS / loss per share is determined by
adjusting the profit or loss attributable to the ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number of ordinary shares

outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares, if any.
£4v
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Segment reporting

A segment is a distinguishable component of the Bank that is engaged either in providing products or services (business
segment), or in providing products or services within a particutar economic environment (geographical segment}, which is
subject to risks and rewards that are different from those of other segments.

{a) Business segments

The business segments within the Bank have been categorised into the following classifications of business segments in
accordance with the requirements specified by the SBP.

- Corporate finance

Corporate banking includes services provided in connection with mergers and acquisitions, underwriting, privatization,
securitization, research, debts (government, high yield), equity, syndication, IPO and secondary private placements.

- Trading and sales

It includes fixed income, equity, foreign exchanges, commodities, credit, funding, own position securities, lending and repos,
brokerage debt and prime brokerage.

- Retail banking

It includes retail lending and deposits, banking services, trust and estates, private lending and deposits, banking service,
trust and estates investment advice, merchant / commercial / corporate cards and private labels and retail.

- Commercial banking

Commercial banking includes project finance, real estate, export finance, trade finance, factoring, leasing, lending,
guarantees, bills of exchange and deposits.

(b) Geographical segments
Currently, the operations of the Bank are carried out in Pakistan only.
Pool Management

The Bank operates general and specific poots for depositors.

Under the general deposits pool, the Bank accepts funds on Mudaraba basis from depositors (Rab-ul-Maal) where the Bank

~ acts as Manager (Mudarib) and invests the funds in the Shariah Compliant modes of islamic financing and refated assets,

investments and placements.

Specific pools are operated for funds acquired / accepted from State Bank of Pakistan for Istamic Export Refinance under
the Musharaka modes.

The profit of each deposit pool is calculated on all the remunerative assets booked by utilizing the funds from the pool after
deduction of expenses directly incurred in earning the income of such pool, if any. No provisions against any non performing
assets of the pool is passed on to the pool. The profit of the pool is shared among the members of the pool on pre-defined
mechanism based on the weightages announced before the profit calculation period.

The deposits and funds under the above mentioned pools are provided to diversified sectors and avenues of the economy /
business as mentioned in the note 38.1.1 and are also invested in Government of Pakistan backed ijarah sukuk. Musharaka
investments from State Bank of Pakistan under Islamic Export Refinance are channelled towards the export sector of the

economy.
Accounting judgments and estimates .

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan requires
the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires the Bank to exercise its judgment in the process of applying
the Bank's accouniing policies. The estimates / judgments and associaled assumptions used in the preparation of the
financial statements are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The estimates / judgments and associated assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revision to the accounting
estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised, if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods. The estimates, judgments and

" assumptions that have significant effect on the financial statements are as follows:

A
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a) Provision against non-performing islamic financing

The Bank reviews its financing portfolio to assess amount of non-performing islamic financing and determine
pravision reguired there against on a quarerly basis. While assessing this requirement various factors including the
past dues, delinquency in the account, financial position of the borrower, value of collateral held and requirements of
Prudential Regulations are considered.

The amount of generai provision against consumer and Small and Medium Enterprises islamic financing are
determined in accordance with the relevant Prudential Regulations and SBP directives.

b) Impairment of available-for-sale investments

The Bank considers that available-for-sale equity investments are impaired when there has been a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value below its cost except for investments where relaxation has been allowed by SBP.
This determination of what is significant or prolonged requires judgement, in addifion, impairment may be
appropriate when there is evidence of deterioration in the financial health of the investee, industry and sector
performance.

c) Income taxes

in making the estimates for current and deferred taxes, the management looks at the income tax law and the
decisions of appellate authorities on certain issues in the past. There are certain matters where the Bank's veiw
differs with the view taken by the income tax department and such amounts have been disclosed as contingent

. liability.
A

d) Operating fixed assets, depreciation and amortization

in making estimates of the depreciation / amortization method, the management uses method which reflects the
pattern in which economic benefits are expecied to be consumed by the Bank. The method applied is reviewed at
each financial year end and if there is a change in the expected pattern of consumpiion of the future economic
benefits embodied in the assets, the method would be changed to reflect the change in pattern.

e) Employees’ benefit plans

The liabilities for employees' benefits are determined using actuarial valuations. The actuarial valuations involve
assumptions about discount rates, expected rates of return on assets and future satary increases as disclosed in
note 31. Due to the long term nature of these plans, such estimates are subject to significant-uncertainty.

5.23 Standards, interpretations and amendments to approved accounting standards that are not yet effective

The following amendments and interpretations with respect to the approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan
would be effective from the dates mentioned below against the respective standard or inferpretation:

Effective date

. Standard or Interpretation (accounting periods
beginning on or after)

|AS 32 ~ Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial liabilities — (Amendment) 01 January 2014
IAS 36 - Recoverable Amount for Non-Financial Assets — (Amendment) 01 January 2014
IFRIC 20 — Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface Ming 01 January 2014
IFRIC 21 — Levies 01 January 2014
IFAS 3 - Profit and loss sharing on Deposits 12 June 2013

The Bank expects that the adoption of the above amendments and interpretation of the standards will not affect the Bank's
financial statements in the period of initial application other than certain additional disclosures as required under IFAS 3.

Further, following new standards have been issued by IASB which are yet to be notified by the SECP for the purpose of
applicability in Pakistan.

IASB effective date

Standard {annual periods beginning
on or after)

IFRS § - Financial Instruments: Classification and Measurement 01 January 2015
IFRS 10 -~ Consolidated Financial Statements 01 January 2013
FRS 11 - Joint Arrangements ; 01 January 2013
IFRS 12 - Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities 01 January 2013
IFRS 13 - Fair Value Measurement 01 January 2013

14
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2013 2012
Note = coeeee {Rupees '000) ------
6. CASH AND BALANCES WITH TREASURY BANKS
in hand
- local currency 808,780 757,536
- foreign currency 213,298 243,174
1,022,089 1,000,710
With State Bank of Pakistan in
- local currency current account 6.1 2,428,682 2,350,157
- foreign currency current account 6.2 28,329 10,690
- foreign currency deposit account 8.3 494,030 493,158
- foreign currency capital account 16 1,158,571 -
4,109,612 2,854,005
With National Bank of Pakistan in
- local currency current account 334,666 366,660
- local currency deposit account 261,040 5]
. 5,727,407 4,221,381

6.4 The local currency current account is maintained with the SBP as per the requirements of Section 36 of the State Bank of
Pakistan Act, 1956, which requires banking companies to maintain a local currency cash reserve in current accounti opened with
the SBP at a sum not less than such percentage of its time and demand liabilities in Pakistan as prescribed by the SBP.

6.2 This represents US dollar settlement account maintained with the SBP.

6.3 This represents balances maintained with SBP in US Doliars in respect of cash reserve requirement and special cash reserve
requirement against the Bank's foreign currency deposits. The balances are maintained on a non - remunerative basis.

2013 2012

Note -~ {Rupees "000) ------
. 7. BALANCES WITH OTHER BANKS
In Pakistan

- on current accounts 22,306 13,389
- on deposit accounts 7.1 16,051,330 6,188,766
16,073,636 6,202,155

Outside Pakistan
- on current accounts 490,667 276,721
- on deposit accounts 1,074 233,601
491,741 510,322
16,565,377 6,712,477

7.1 The expected return on these deposits ranges from 5% to 9.40% (2012: 5% 1o 9.25%) per annum.
o
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INVESTMENTS
8.1 investments by types
2013 2012
Heid by  Given as Held by Given as
Total T
Bank  Colflateral ' © Bank  Collateral otal
Note Rupees in "'000
Available for sale securities
Sukuk certificates 22,264,509 - 22,264,509{ | 27,211,781 - 27,211,781
Ordinary shares of isted company 8.5 28,768 - 28,768 28,754 - 28,754
Qrdinary shares of unlisted company
Takaful Pakistan Limited (a related party}) 8.6 52,200 - 52,200 52,200 - 52,200
22,345,477 - 22,345,477 27,292,735 - 27,292,735
Held to maturity securities
Sukuk certificates 8.4 - - - 12,838 - 12,838
Investments at cost 22,345 477 - 22,345,477 27,305,573 - 27,305,573
Less: Provisions for diminution in the
value of investments 8.3 (210,334) - (210,334) (106,344) - (108,344}
Investments {net of provisions) 22,135,143 - 22,135,143 27,199,229 - 27,199,229
Surpius on revaluation of :
'available for sale' securities 19 26,820 - 26,820 222,232 - 222,232
. Total investments at market value 22,161,963 - 22,161,963 27 421 461 - 27,421,461
2013 2012
Note ~—--- (Rupees '000) ------

8.2 Investments by segments

Sukuk certificates

Federal Government Securities 16,294,108 21,047,000

Others 5,870,400 6,177,619

8.4 22,264,508 27224619

Fully paid-up ordinary shares

Ordinary shares of listed company 8.5 28,768 28,754

Ordinary shares of unlisted company - retated party 8.6 52,200 52,200
Total Investments at cost 22,345,477 27,305,573
Less: Provisions for diminution in the value of investments 8.3 {210,334) {106,344)
investments {net of provisions} 22,135,143 27,199,228
Surplus on revaluation of *available for sale' securities 19 26,820 222,232
Total investments at market value 22,161,963 27,421,461

8.3 Particulars of provisions for diminution in value of investments:

8.3.1 Opening balance 106,344 53,741
Charged during the year 119,436 53,990
Reversal during the year {15,446) (1,387}

103,990 52,603
Closing balance 210,334 108,344

§.3.2 Particulars of provisions in respect of fype and segment
Available for sale
Investment in Sukuk certificates

New Allied Electronics Industries {Privaie) Limited 11,820 25,000
Coastal Refinery Limited 164,249 52,074
Unlisted Company (ordinary shares) '
Takaful Pakistan Limited 25,088 27,353
Listed Company (ordinary shares)
Agritech Limited 833 9177 1,917
210,334 106,344

8.3.3 The mark o market impairment loss on this investment as of 31 December 2013 amounts to Rs. 18.354 (2012 : Rs. 19.167} million.
However, SBP vide its ietters BPRD/BRD-(Policy)/2013-11339 dated 25 July 2013 read with letter no. BPRD/BRD-(Policy)/2013-1857
dated 15 February 2013 has allowed relaxation from recognition of full impairment loss to recognize the same in a phased manner by 31
December 2014. As per such relaxation the Bank is required to book atleast 50% of impairment ioss as of 31 December 2013 which
amounts to Rs.9.177 {2012 : Rs.1.917) million.

éut/\
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- 2013 2012 2013 2012

Name of the investee company Number of certifcates / Cost

Note units ----— [Rupees '000) —---
Availabie for sale
Federal Government Securities
Government of Pakistan ljara Sukuk 162,579 210.47Q 16,294,109 21,047,000
Unquoted Securities
Coastal Refinery Limited BE42 - - 340,000 340,000
New Allied Electronics Indusiries (Private) Limited 8C,000 80,000 11,820 25,000
National Industrial Parks Development and Management Company 396,000 396,000 1,980,898 1,982,377
Engro Chemical Limited 10,000 10,000 50,023 50,036
FHouse Buiding Finance Corperation Limited - 34,000 - 50,852
Educational Excellence Limited - 54,000 - 67,414
PACE Pakistan Limited 80,000 80,000 360,000 354,773
AL Razi Healthcare Private Limited 60,000 80,000 260,000 296,000
Pakistan Stone Development Company 80,000 80,000 250,000 350,000
WAPDA Third Sukuk Company Limited 85,000 - 425,000 -
3,677,741 3,521,452
Quoted Securities
Abu Dhabi islamic Bank Sukuk 843 45,000 67,000 483,595 659 885
Emirates Islamic Bank Sukuk B.4.3 46,000 68,000 495 457 671,095
Dubai Islamic Bank Sukuk - 29,000 . 382,128
Qatar Islamic Bank Sukuk - 48,500 - 453,03¢
Qatar International tsiamic Bank Sukuk - 45,000 - 477,182
Sharjah Islamic Bank Sukuk 842 40,000 - 421,298 -
Saudi Electricity Global Sukuk 8.4.2 85,000 - 892,309 -
2,292,659 2,643,329
22,264,509 27,241,781
. Held to maturity securities
Unguoted Securities
Sitara Chemical Industries Limited . 3e,000 - 12,838
22,264 509 27, 224 619
a.4.1 Other particutars of sukuk bonds are as follows:
Certificates / units Profit
Particulars denomination in Profit rate per annum Redemption terms and Maturity
PR / USD payments
. . PKR 400,000 & month Treasury Bills Semiannualy The principal will be redeemed an maturily in March

Govemment of Pakistan ljara Sukuk 2014, May 20%4, December 2014, March 2015, June
2015, September 2015 and March 2016.

Caastal Refinery Limited PXR 5,000 6 menth KIBOR +3.75 % Semiannually Péyable in 10 consecutive semi annual instalments
commencing from the 18th month from the date of first
drawdown. These wil mature by September 2013,
Howevar, the certificates have not yet been issued.

New Aflied Electronics industries PKR 3125 3 month KIBOR + 2.6 % Quanerly Fayable in 16 equal quarterly instaliments cormmencing.

{Privaie) Limited from the 15th montn from the gate of first drawdown .
These will mature by July 2014,

National Industrial Parks Development PKR 5,000 8 month KIBOR + 0.6 % Semiannually Bullat payment on maturily. These will mature by

and Managemeni Company August 2014,

Engro Chemical Limited PKR 5,000 3 month KIBOR + 1.5 % Semiannually in 2 consecutive, equal, semi-annual installments, the
first such installmant faling due on the 9oth month
from the date of first contribution. These will mature by
September 2015.

. 3 month KIBOR + 3.5 % Quarterly Payabte in 10 equal quariery instaliments along with
: P principal and profit commencing fram 12th month of
Pace Pakistan Limfted PKR 5,000 grawdown. These will mature by April 2014,
& month KIBOR + 2.5 % for firsl 2 years Manthly Payable in equal manthly instalments starting from
. & month KIBOR + 3.6 % for remaining years December 2012. These will maturs by Nev. 2017
AL Razi Healthcare Private Limited PKR 5000  Ravised 6 month KIBOR + 2.0 % for
remaining years
B month KIBOR + 1.00 % Semiannually In 8 equal semi annual installments. First instailment

Pakistan Stane Development Company PKR 5,000 will be due afler the 18th Maonth. These will mature by

Mareh 2016
PKR 5,000 8 month KIBOR + 1.0 % Semi annually Bullet payment en maturity. These will mature by

WAPDA Third Sukuk Company Limited October 2021

Abu Dhabi {slamic Bank Sukuk (note B.4.3) USD 100 3.78% Half Yearly ~ Buliet payment on maturity. These will mature by
November 2016,

Emirates Islamic Bank Sukuk (note 8.4.3) USD 100 4.72% Half Yearly ~ Sullet paymeni on matunty. These wil mature by

’ January 2017.
usD 100 2.95% Half Yearly ~ Bullet payment on malurity. These will mature &y April
Sharjah Islamic Bank Sukuk (note 8.4.3) 2018
UsD 106G 347% Half Yearly ~ Builet payment an maturity These will mature by April
Saudi Electricity Global Sukuk (note 8.4.3) 2023.
8.4.2 Total participation of Rs. 340 (2012: Rs. 340) million has been made by the Bank, however the sukuk certificates are yet fo be issued.
8.4.3 These are listed on London Stock Exchange.
B85 Pariiculars of investmants in ordinary shares of listed company .
2013 2012
Market Number of
Cost Market Value
Company Name Number of shares Cost ) Value shares
------- Rupees in "000 ------- -=n-=- Rupees in '000 -
Available for sale
Agritech Limited 821,837 28,768 10,414 821,555 28,754 9,588
28,768 10,414 28,754 §,588
gA 17
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8.5.1 Quality of available for sale securities

ALBARAKA BANK (PAKISTAN) LIMITED

2013 2012
Amount Rating Amount Rating
Note (Rupees in "000) {Rupees in "000)
Sukuk certificates
Government of Pakistan ljara Sukuks 16,294,108  GOP Guaranteed 21,047,000 GOP Guaranteed
Coastal Refinery Limited 340,000 Non-performing 340,000  Non-performing
New Allied Electronics Industries (Private) Limited 11,820 Non-performing 25,000 Non-performing
National Industrial Parks Development and
Management Company 1,980,898 GOP Guaranteed 1,982,377 GOP Guaranteed
Engre Chemical Limited 50,023 A 50,0385 A
Hause Building Finance Comporation Limited - - 50,852 A
Educational Excellence Limited - - 67,414 Unrated
PACE Pakistan Limited 360,000 Non-performing 350,773  Nen-performing
AL Razi Healthcare Private Limited 260,000 Unrated 296,000 Unrated
Pakistan Stone Develapment Company 250,000 GOP Guaranteed 350,000 GOP Guaranteed
WAPDA Third Sukuk Company Limited 425,000 GOP Guaranteed -
Abu Dhabi Isiamic Bank Sukuk 483,595 A2 659,885 A2
Emirates islamic Bank Sukuk 495,457 Baa1 671,085 Unrated
Dubai Islamic Bank Sukuk - - 382,128 Baa1
Qatar |stamic Bank Sukuk - - 453,029 A-
Qatar [nternational Islamic Bank Sukuk - - 477,182 A3
Sharjah Islamic Bank Sukuk 421,297 BBB+ - -
Saudi Electricity Global Sukuk 892,310 AA- - -
' Ordinary shares
Takaful Pakistan Limited 2.6 52,200 BBB+ 52.200 BBB+
Agritech Limited 28,768 Non-performing 28,754  Non-perfoming
Total 22,345,477 27,282 735
8.6 Unlisted Company (ordinary shares}
Latest
Percentage of avall'able Name of the chief
2013 2012 2013 2012 equity holding % .aumte.d exacutive officer
Number of shares Rupees in '000 financial
statements
Takafu! Pakistan Limited” (related party) 5,100,000 5,100,000 52,200 52,200 17 31 D;;fzmber' Syed Arif Hussain
Crown Textile Mills Limited ** 444,656 444 B56 - - - - -
52,200 52,200
* The breakup value of Takafu! Pakistan Limited is Rs. 5.32 (un-audited) per share as per the available financial statements for the period ended 30
September 2013.
** These were transferred at nil value upon amalgamation of Pakistan branches of AlBaraka with and into the Bank.
2013 2012
' Note e (Rupees '000) -—=mmmm-m
9, ISLAMIC FINANCING AND RELATED ASSETS
. In Pakistan
Islamic financing and related assets
- Murabaha finance 9.1 18,195,145 14,493 691
- Advance against murabaha finance 985,545 1,158,835
- Export refinance under Islamic scheme 2,455,955 2,160,057
- ljarah assets under [FAS 2 2,881,097 2,089,490
- Net investment in ifarah 8.2 129,091 269,483
- Advance against ijarah 303,652 99,496
- Service ljarah 394,608 512,255
- Diminishing musharaka financing 7,136,647 5911,172
" - Over due acceptances 562,235 713,114
- Salam financing 180,826 90,641
- Advance against salam 4,348,501 3,359,048
- Financing against bills - payable outside Pakistan 428,963 164,993
- istasna finance 374,405 -
- Advance against istasna 1,414,360 458,000
- Qarz-e-Hasna 9.3 22,432 28,814
- Rahnuma travei services - 34
|siamic financing and reiated assets - gross 39,814,462 31,508,123
Provisions for non-performing financing - specific 9.6 2,778,875 2,714,808
Provisions for non-performing financing - general 096 14,943 11,767
2,793,818 2,726,675
islamic financing and related assets - net of provisions 37,020,644 28,782,448
9.1 Murabaha receivable - gross 18,786,157 15,021,254
Deferred murabaha income {591,012} (527,563}
18,195,145 14,493,691

Murabaha finance

W
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9.2

9.3

9.4

9.4.1

. 9.4.2

9.5

9.6

9.6.1

9.6.2

9.6.3

ALBARAKA BANK (PAKISTAN) LIMITED

Net investment in ijarah

2013 2042
Later than Later than
Not later one and Not later one and
than one iess than Overfive than one less than Over five
year  five years  years Total year five years years Total
Rupees in '000
ljarah rentais receivable 101,530 18,744 - 120,274 156,627 59,993 - 216,620
Residual value 33,636 3,215 - 36,851 74,351 10,684 - 85,035
Minimum ijarah payments 135,166 21,959 - 157,125 230,578 70,677 - 301,655
Profit for future periods 24,608 3,426 - 28,034 28,092 4,080 - 32172
Present value of minimum
ijarah payments 110,558 18,533 - 129,091 202,886 66,597 - 269 483

This represents profit free islamic financing to staff under the Bank's human resource policies.

2013 2012
Particulars of Islamic financing and related assets - {Rupees '¢00} -
in local currency 35,611,192 28,405,184
In foreign currencies 1,409,452 377,264
37,020,644 28,782,448
Short-term 26,402,418 20,525,754
Long term 10,618,226 8,256,694

37,020,644 28,782 448

islamic financing and related assets include Rs. 5248.051 (2012 Rs 6.093.026) milion which have been placed under non-
performing status as detailed below:
2013
Catagory of classifications Provision Provision
‘ Domestic Overseas Total required held
Rupees in ‘000

Other assets especially mentioned - - - -
Substandard 570,385 - 570,385 91,467 91,467

Doubtful 251,312 - 251,312 70,992 70,992
Loss 4,426,354 - 4,426,354 2,616,416 2,616,416

5,248,051 - 5,248,051 2,778,875 2,778,875
Category of classifications 2012

Provision  Provision
Domestic  Overseas Total required held
Rupees in '000

Other assets especially mentioned - - - R
Substandard 477.608 - 477,608 16,843 16,843

Doubtful 1,461,380 - 1,461,380 421,685 421,685
Loss 4,154,038 - 4,154,038 2,276,380 2,276,380
6,093,026 - 6,093,028 27140808 2714908

Particulars of provisions against non-performing islamic financing and related assets

2013 2012
Specific General Totat Specific General Total
Rupees in '000

Opening balance 2,714,908 14,767 2,726,675 1,979,064 12,052 1,891,118
Charge for the year 713,160 3,176 716,336 1,066,032 - 1,066,032
Reversais for the year {648,193 - (649,193) (315,859) (285 (316,144)

63,967 3,176 67,143 750,173 (2B3) 749,888
Written off during the year - (14,329) - (14,329)

Closing balance 2,778,875 14,943 2,793,818 2,714,808 11,767 2,726,675

The above provision against non-perfoerming islamic financing has been computed after considering the benefit of forced sale value
(FSV) of collateral amounting to Rs. 2,167.125 (2012: Rs. 2.701.616) million. The FSV benefit recognized is not allowed for
distribution of cash or stock dividend to shareholders.

The Bank maintains general reserve (provisions) in accordance with the applicable requirements of prudential regulations for
consumer, small and medium enterprise islamic financing.

SBP vide its letter BPRD/BLRD-3/DMG/2011-1035 dated 26 January 2011 has allowed relaxation from provisioning requirement
against certain credit exposures having & provisioning impact of Rs. 40.581 (2012 :Rs. 472.24) million.
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ALBARAKA BANK (PAKISTAN) LIMITED

9.6.4 Particulars of provisions against non-performing islamic financing

2013 2012
Specific Generai Total Specific General Total
Rupees in '000

in local currency 2,765,881 14,943 2,780,834 2,701,924 11,767 2,713,691
in foreign currencies 12,984 - 12,984 12,984 - 12,984
2,778,875 14,943 2,793,818 2,714,908 11,767 2,726,675
2013 2012
8.6.5 Particulars of write offs Note - (Rupees "000) ------
9.6.5.1 Against provision - 14,329
Directly charged to profit and loss account - -
- 14,329
89.6.5.2 Write offs Rs. 500,000 and above - 14,329
Write offs below Rs. 500,000 - -
- 14,329
. 9.7 Particulars of Islamic financing to executives, directors,
associated companies etc.
Debts due by directors, executives or officers of the Bank
or any of them either severally or jointly with any other person®
Balance at the beginning of the year 415,761 365,422
tslamic financing during the year 245,311 159,880
Repayments during the year {201,918) (109,541)
Balance at the end of the year 459,214 415,761
Debts due by companies or firms in which the directors of the Bank
are interested as directors, partners or in the case of private
companies as members
Balance at beginning of the year - -
tslamic financing during the year - -
Repayments during the year - -
Balance at end of the year - -
Debis due by associated and subsidiary companies, controlled firms,
managed modarabas and other related parties
Balance at the beginning of the year - -
. Istaric financing during the year - -
Repayments during the year - -
Balance at the end of the year - -
* These represent islamic financing given by the Bank to its employees as per the terms of their employment.
10. OPERATING FIXED ASSETS
Capital work-in-progress 10.1 357,074 540,040
Property and equipments 10.2 1,453,553 1,090,095
intangible assets 10.3 915126 999 041

2,725,753 2,629,176

10.1. Capital work-in-progress

Advances ta suppliers and contractors . 10.1.1 357,074 414,200
Advance for purchase of property 251,680 251,680
Provisions for impairment against advance for purchase of property (251,680} {125,840)
- 125,840

357,074 540,040

10.1.1 This includes advance payment amounting to Rs.121.049 (2012: Rs.218.761) million for implementation of new core
banking system of the Bank. '

f/W

20



10.2 Property and equipment

ALEARAKA BANK (PAKISTAN) LIMITED

2013
COST ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
Charge for the
Additions / year / (on Net book
As at 01 (disposals) As at 31 As at 01 disposals)/ As at 31 value as at
January I (write December January (on write December 31 December Rate of
2013 offs*} 2013 2013 offs*) 2013 2013 depreciation
Rupees in '000 o
Leasehold land 534,701 172,403 707,104 - - - 707,104 -
Building and improvements
on leasehold land 406,105 135,551 522,575 97,907 28,007 115,934 406,641 5% - 10%
(19,081) * {9,980) *
Furniture and fixiures 144,730 5,255 149,900 58,395 15,425 73,781 76,119 10%
{85) {39)
Camputer and office
equipments 421,038 159,326 580,364 286,966 55,227 342,193 238,171 10% -50%
Vehicles 35,717 12,305 37,608 11,792 10,422 12,080 25518 20%
{10,414) (10,124)
1,542,291 484,840 1,997,551 455,060 109,081 543,998 1,453,553
(10,499) {10,163}
(19,081} * (9,980) *
Assets held under
finance lease
Vehicles 46,088 - 14,789 43,224 2,826 14,789 - 20%
{31,299) (31,261)
2013 1,588,379 484,840 2,012,340 498,284 111,907 558,787 1,453,553
{41,748) (41,424}
(19,081} * (9,980} ™
2012
COST ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
o Charge for the Net book
As at 01 ';‘.’dm""is I Asat3 Asat01 year/{on  Asat31 valueasat  Rateof
January ( :spoia s) December January disposals)/ December 31 December depreciation
2012 twrite 2012 2012 {on write 2012 2012
‘ offs™) .
offs*)
Rupees in '000 %
Leasehold land 532,600 2,101 534,701 - - - 534,701 -
Buiiding and improvements
on leasehold land 402,792 3,313 406,105 68,802 28,105 $7,807 308,198 5% -10%
Furniture and fixtures 144 528 554 144,730 43,322 15,425 58,385 86,335 10%
(352) (352)
Computer and office
equipments 417,207 4,227 421,038 245,482 41,900 286,966 134,072 10% - 50%
(386) (396)
Vehicles 36,951 2,102 35717 5,020 G324 11,792 23,825 20%
(3,3386) (2,552)
1,534,078 12,297 1,642 291 363,606 94,754 455,060 1,087,231
{4,084} {3,300)
Assets held under
finance iease
Vehicles 76,733 - 46,088 61,135 8,775 43,224 2,864 20%
(30,645) {27,686)
2012 1,610,811 12,297 1,588,379 424741 104 529 498,284 1,090,005
(34,729) (30,988)
L
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ALBARAKA BANK (PAKISTAN) LIMITED

2013 2012
Note ------ (Rupees "000} —---
10.3 Intangible assets
Computer spftware and core deposits 10.3.1 531,981 615,896
Brand with indefinite useful life 10.3.2 383,145 383,145
915,126 999,041
10.3.1 2013
COST ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION Net book value
As at 01 As at 31 As at 01 As at 31 as at 31
January December January Amortisation December December Rate of
2013 Additions 2013 2013 for the year 2013 2013 amortisation
Rupees in '000 %
Computer software 214,543 5,381 219,924 146,072 26,513 172,585 47,339 20%-33%
Core deposits 684,000 - 684,000 136,575 62,783 199,358 484,642 8.33%-10%
808,543 5,381 903,924 282,647 89,296 371,943 531,981
2012
COST ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION Net book value
As at 01 Asat3t  Asat0i As at 31 as at 31 Rate of
January December January Amortisation December December amortisation
2012 Additions 2012 2012 for the year 2012 2012
Rupees in '000 %
Computer software 144 879 £9,664 214,543 123,711 22,381 146,072 68,471 20%-33%
Core deposits 684,000 - 584,000 73,620 62,955 136,875 547 425 8.33%-10%
828,879 69,664 898,543 197,33 85,316 282,647 615,896

10.3.2 During the year, the management has carried out annual impairment test in respect of Brand as required by IAS - 36 "Impairments of

Assets”.

The recoverable amount of the asset has been determined based an 'valug in use' using discounted cash flaw methodology, covering cash
flow projections for a period of § years.

The key assumptions used for the purpose of the projections and impairment test are as under;

- Discount rate - Pre tax
- Terminal growth rate

10.4 Disposal of assets

25.8%
8.3%

Details of disposal of fixed assets where cost exceeds Rs, 1 million or baak value is greater than Rs. 0.25 miliion, whichever is lower are as

follows:
Description Cost Accuml.“a.md Book Sale N.Iode of Particulars of purchaser
depreciation value proceeds disposal
—rrmerreeemeaeeses Ripees in '000 -—--emmeee e
Vehicles
Toyota Corrolla 1,005 1,005 - Bank's policy Ahmed Noor - Employee
Honda Accord 2,880 2,680 - 423 Bank's policy Ahmed Shuja Kidwai - Employee
Toyota Corrolta 1,015 1,015 - 11 Bank's policy Saima Naeem - Ex-Employee
Toyota Corrolla 1,250 1,250 - - Bank's poficy Kashif Hafeez - Employee
Toyota Corrolla 1,250 1,250 - - Bank's policy Shahzad Ismait - Employee
Honda Civic 1,775 1,775 - 206 Bank's policy Sarfaraz Hussain Mayo - Employee
Honda Civic 1,043 1,043 - 810 Auction Abdul Ahad
Honda Civic 1,043 1,043 865 Auction Abdul Ahad
Toyota Camry 2,765 2,765 - 538 Bank's policy Kaleem Igbal - Employee
Honda City 1,239 950 28¢ - Bank's policy Jawed Aziz Memon (Late) - Ex-Employee
15,065 14,776 289 2,953

Fixed assets having book value of less than Rs. 0.25 million or cost of Rs. 1 million is as follows:

Various 26,733 26,648 85 3,639

2013 41,798 41,424 374 6,591

2012 34,730 30,985 3,745 11,448
Fuw
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11.

12.

121

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS

Deferred tax debits arising in respect of

Provisions against non performing islamic financing and related assets

Provisions for diminution in the value of investments

Provisions against operating fixed assets

Provisions against other asssts

Deferred tax asset in respect of minimum tax to be carried forwars
and adjusted against tax liatility of future years

Ceferred 1ax on remeasurment of defined benefif asset

Unused tax losses

Deferred tax credits arising due to
Tax effect of fixed assets owned / leased
Tax effect of revaluation of investments classified as available-for-sale

ALBARAKA BANK (PAKISTAN) LIMITED

2013 2012
--—-- {Rupees '000) ------
Restated

844,728 564,648
75,178 38.782
22,022 44 044
1,551 18.612
196,646 142 530
6,217 1341
648,503 683316
1,591,845 1,483 333
151,394 117.376
9,387 52318
160,781 201,134
1,431,064 1,292 135

As at 31 Decamber 2013, the Bank has unused tax osses of Rs. 1,852 867 (2012: Rs. 1,952.331) million

The above net deferred tax asset has been recognized in accordance with the Bank's accounting oolicy. The management
based on financial projeciions prepared during the year. estimates that sufficient taxable profits would be avaiable n future

against which the deferred tax asset couid be realized.

OTHER ASSETS

Profit / return accrued in local currency

Advances, deposits and prepayments

Receivable against sale of shares

Advance taxation (payments less provision)

Unrealised gain on re-measurament of forward
exchange contracts

Branch adjustment account

Receivable in respect of defined benefit plan

Stamps and stationery

Non banking assets acquired 'n satisfaction of claims

Cthers

Less: Provisions held against cther assets

Other assats (net of provisions)

Note

314313

121

12.2

2013 2012
------- (Rupees '000) ------
Restated

966,822 991 223
232,394 154934
81,000 81000
271,818 277.388
58,706 3C.205
30,867 20,759
8,950 14,151
8,375 €919
405,289 102,443
93.040 51664
2,185,261 1,780,654
{28,065} {(53178)
2127196 1,707,476

Represant properties aquired by the Bank in satisfaction of claims from borrowers. The fair vaiue of these assets amounts to

Rs. 486.23 (2012:Rs. 102.413) mitlion,

Provisions held against other assets
Opening batance

Charge for the year

Reversals for the year

23

2013 2012
------ {Rupees '000} -—---
53,178 4 737
- 45,746
(25,113) {305)
28,065 53 178
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13.

14.

14.1

‘I 14.2

15.

151

16.

ALBARAKA BANK (PAKISTAN) LIMITED

2013 2012
Note rumeme {RUpees '000) -—---
BILLS PAYABLE
in Pakistan 725,609 746,651
QOutside Pakistan - -
725,608 746,851
DUE TO FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS
in Pakistan 14.1&14.2 2,201,945 1,991,738
Outside Pakistan - -
2,201,945 1,991,738
Particulars of due to financial institutions with respect to currencies
in local currency 2,201,945 1,991,738
in foreign currencies - -
2,201,945 1,091,738
Details of due to financial institutions
Borrowings from State Bank of Pakistan
Under Islamic export refinance scheme 2,201,945 1,891,738

Represents musharaka contribution by SBP against Istamic export refinance scheme. Expected profit rate on such scheme
during the year 2013 ranges from 8.20% to 8.40% (2012: 8.5%) per annum. The maximum limit approved by SBP to the
Bank under lstamic Export Refinance Scheme is Rs. 2.8 (2012: 2.8) billion.

DEPOSITS AND OTHER ACCOUNTS

Customers

Fixed deposits 26,364,509 27,381,596

Savings deposits 25,092,485 21,498,254

Current accounts - non-remunerative 12,241,316 8,710,118

Margin deposits 558,019 475,344
64,256,329 58,065,312

Financial Institutions

Remunerative deposits 11,347,303 5,194,099

Non-remunerative deposits 43,465 19,244
11,390,768 5,213,343

15.1 75,647,097 63,278,655

Particulars of deposits

in iocal currency 71,089,648 58,788,778

in foreign currencies 4,557,449 4,489,877
75,647,097 63,278,655

SUBORDINATED DEBT

As referred to in note 1.2 to these financial statements, the Bank has entered into a sub-ordinated loan agreement with
Albaraka Istamic Bank BSC (the major sponsor). In terms of the said agreement a sub-ordinated loan of Rs. 1,158.571
million (JSD 11 milfion) has been provided to the Bank. No return will be payable on the loan and the loan stands sub-
ordinated to all other creditors, depositors and third party obligations of the Bank. The loan is intended to bridge the
regulatory capital shortfall of the Bank and will only be repaid if and when the Bank is compliant with the MCR requirements.
In the event the Bank is not MCR compliant by 31 December 2016, the loan will be converted into the paid up capital of the
Bank. As per the terms of the agreement, the proceeds of the loan shall be placed by the Bank in an interest free deposit
account maintained by the Bank with the SBP in US Dollars.

(Ve
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ALBARAKA BANK (PAKISTAN;) LIMITED

2013 2012
17. OTHER LIABILITIES Note ~  -=- --- [Rupees '000) w-wuun
Return on deposits and borrowings:
- payable in local currency 827,779 717,284
- payable in foreign currencies 1,985 1,097
Accrued expenses 103,554 110,277
Payable to Emirates Financial Holdings Limited 1,441 1,441
Unremitted head office expenses 95.704 95 704
Retention money - 152
Security deposit against fjarah 812,108 540,274
Charity payable 171 82,948 112,243
Advance payments 226,309 113,753
Others 17.2 25,561 37,889
. 2,177,989 1,830,054
17.1  Movement of charity payable
Opening balance 112,243 82,651
Amourt transferred during the year 25,898 36,121
Payments / utilization during the year 1712 {55,193) {6,5629)
Ciosing halance 82,948 112,243

17.4.1 According to the instructions of the Shariah Advisor, any income earned by the Bank from Shariah non-compliant avenues
shauld be paid by the Bank for charitable purposes.

17.1.2 Detailed information relating to charity paid to organizations / individuals equal to or in excess of Rs. 100,000 is given in
annexure-l! to the financial statements.

1?.2- Includes Rs. 0.657 {2012:0.657) million in respect of exchange difference which arose on translation of the share subscription
money received in foreign currency from Mal Al Khaleej investment L.L.C in respect of right shares issued during the year
ended 31 December 2008.

4g. SHARE CAPITAL

181 Authorized Capital

2013 2012 2013 2012
Number of shares rree (RUP&ES '000) --rrrr
1,000,000,000 1,000,000,000 Ordinary shares of Rs 10 each 10,000,600 10,000,000

Fo
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18.7 |ssued. subscribed and paid up capital

23 2042

ALBARAKA BANK {PAKISTAN] LIMITED

2013 2042
Humber of shares e [Rupsees 000) ~mr
450,000,600 450 000,850 Tirdinary shates of B3 15 each fully paid in cash 4,500,000 A B0 ISR
443,520,000 443 520,006 izsued for consideration ofbier than cash 4,435,200 4 435,200
853,520,000 893 520,000 : £,835,200 8,938,200
453 Wsior shareholders as 2l 3t December 2013 and 31 Decembser 2012 are 2s follows:
2013 202
Number of Percentage of Number of Percentage of

Hame of shareholder

alfisyaks lstamic Bank {Bahrain} B.S.C. (5
Mzl Al Khaleg wesimenl LG '
Sheikh Tarig Bin Faisal Bin Khaiid Al Qassemi

,. Emirates Financizl Holdings Limiled

15 SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF ASSETS - NET OF TAX
Surplus on revahation of available for sale’ securiliss:

Sukuk certificales
Cirdinary sharas - listed

Felated deferred lax labilily

0. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

20.17* Transaction-related contingent liabilities

tncludes parformance bonds, bid bonds, shipping
guaraniess lavouning:
iy Gowernmert .
fiy Banking companiss and ather financial inshiciions
i}y {Hhess :
20.7 Trade-related contingent fiahilities
t attars of cradit

{Oihers - Shipaing Gueraniges b

Aocepiances

e

ghares held  shareholding

shares held  shareholding

577.543.500 54.654% 577 543600 64 84%

158,350,032 17.72% 158,260,020 17.72%

110,311,487 12.35% 110391467 1235%

34,706,680 3.B8% 34707180 3BE%

880,921,718 98.58% 880922218 36.59%
2043 2012

v {Rupess '000) -

35,987 230481
12,177 £17 245
26820 222332
{8,387 53 818)
17,433 138,414
4,342,566 4610558
258,551 445 540
520,686 548,083
5521 B03 54504 741
5007 432 2,740 3386
138,380 2 BUD

4,198,245
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20.3

20.4

20.5

20.6

20.6.1

20.8.2

20.6.3

20.6.4

21,

ALBARAKA BANK (PAKISTAN) LIMITED

2013 2012
------ {Rupees '000) --vm-

Commitments in respect of forward exchange contracts

Purchase 2,320,863 3,254 692
Sale 2,781,334 2,965,258
Commitments to incur capital expenditure 40,161 296,443
Commitments for lease liability in respect of rentals under ijarab - 9,672

Other Contingencies

The Bank has filed appeals before Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue {(ATIR) against the orders in respect of assessment
years 2001-2002, 2002-2003 and tax years 2004 to 2011. Moreover, the Income Tax Department has also filed appeals
before ATIR against the orders in respect of assessment years 2001-2002, 2002-2003 and tax year 2004 to 2011 issued by
Commissioner Inland Revenue (CIR) (Appeals). Appeals filed by the Bank and the income Tax Deparntment are pending for
decision. The management of the Bank is confident that the appeals are likely to be decided in favor of the Bank and, hence
no provision has been made in these financial statements for the income tax ciaims amounting to Rs. 116.512 miliion.

In respect of tax year 2011, the Additional Commissioner Inland Revenue (ACIR) has issued notice under section 122(9) read
with section 122 (5A) of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 for proposed amendment of deemed assessment order in which
certain disallowances, have been made. The reply to the notice has been filed through tax consultant; however the order of
the ACIR is awaited.

The Bank has received various assessment orders from Deputy Commissioner Inland Revenue (DCIR) stating that the Bank
has short paid Federal Excise Duty (FED) on specific income of the Bank for the tax years 2009, 2010 and 2011 amounting to
Rs. 86.584 million. However, Appeliate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR) has set aside the orders for fresh adjudication. The
said matter is pending decision for further proceedings. The management of the Bank is confident that the above matter will
be decided in its favor and hence, no provision has been made in these financial statements against any liabiiity which may

arise in this respect.

During the year 2010, certain suits have been filed by Mr. Faisal Vawda in the Honorable High Court of Sindh against the
Bank wherein Mr. Vawda has claimed that he was offered 24 million ordinary shares of the Bank at an aggregate value of Rs. -
300 million as sale consideration against the commercial property sold to the Bank. He further claimed that in addition to the
said property, he has also paid Rs. 60 million towards the purchase consideration for the above referred shares. However,
the said shares or any other consideration against the property has not been received by him. Based on the above, Mr.
Vawda has alleged the Bank of involvement in illegal business. The Bank contends that the aforesaid ailegations of Mr.
Vawda are baseless and without any merit and that the subject property has been duly purchased and paid for by the Bank.
Further, in the opinion of legal advisor of the Bank, the Bank is likely to successfully contest the aforementioned proceedings
and accordingly is not likely to be exposed to the abovementioned claims being prayed against the Bank.

in terms of the merger agreement dated 16 August 2010 between sponsors shareholders of the Bank and AlBaraka, the
Emirates Financial Holdings LLC will keep the Bank fully indemnified, safe and secured against all losses, costs, claims,
damages of any nature whatsoever resulting to the Bank on account of the Mr. Faisal Vawda Litigations including any
additional or ancillary litigation or proceedings filed by Faisal Vawda Group in relation to the subject matier of the Faisal
Vawda Litigations. In this regard, the Bank has invoked the indemnity claim and has submitted a claim notice upon EFH,

2013 2012
----- (Rupees "000) ------

Claim not acknowledged as debt 30,000 30,000

PROFIT / RETURN EARNED ON ISLAMIC FINANCING AND RELATED ASSETS,

INVESTMENTS AND FLACEMENTS
On islamic financing and related assets 3,123,867 2,857 586

On investments in
- Available for sale securities . 2,371,864 2,918,611

- Held to maturity securities 14 79,766
On deposits with banks 536,803 413,710
98,684 1,457

On due from financial institutions

N 5,131,232 6.271,140
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ALBARAKA BANK (PAKISTAN) LIMITED

2013 2012
Note ——w- (Rupees *000) ----—
22. RETURN ON DEPOSITS AND OTHER DUES EXPENSED
Return on deposits and other accounts 4,178,241 4 577,819
Export refinance under Istamic scheme 161,853 147 430
4,340,094 4,725,249
23. GAIN / {LOSS) ON SALE OF SECURITIES - net
3ain / (loss} on sale of sukuk certificates
- Federal government sukuk certificates 22,500 (8,000)
- Other sukuk certificates 42,403 -
64,903 (6,000)
Gain on sale of listed shares - 594
64,903 {5,406}
24, OTHER INCOME
Rent on lockers 5,041 4,239
Profit on sale of fixed assets 9,449 8,542
P Financial advisory / facility arrangement fee 14,386 1,250
' 28,876 14,031
2013 2012
—n-— (Rupees '000) -—---
Restated
25. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
Salaries, allowances and other staff benefits 251 894,428 833,201
Contribution to defined contribution plan 32 38,914 38,644
Charge for defined benefit plan 31.7 27,200 27,89¢
Non-executive directors' fees, allowances and other expenses 33 18,248 16,376
Rent, taxes, insurance, electricity, etc. 504,913 454 435
Legal and professional charges 30,834 26,522
License fee 39128 46,829
Communication 84,931 82,029
‘Brokerage, commission and bank charges 11,512 10,585
Traveling and conveyance 15,812 24,895
Repairs and maintenance 47,232 42 137
‘ Training and development 1,452 1,389
Stationery and printing 33,062 22,792
Advertisement and publicity 21,294 38.611
Auditors' remuneration 25.2 6,000 5,500
Depreciation 10.2 111,907 104,529
Amortization 10.3 89,297 85,316
Security charges ' 84,314 71,409
Newspaper and periodicals 1,348 1,672
Rental paid on assets acquired under ljara 10,121 16,097
Entertainment 21,787 18,460
Other expenses 23,879 25,307
2,118,613 1,994,544

251  This includes remuneration to Shariah Advisor and Deputy Shariah Advisor amounting to Rs. 4.356 (2012; Rs. 5.345) million.

25,2 Auditors' remuneration

Fee for statutory audit - annual 1,826 1,660
Fee for limited scope review - Half yearly 550 500
Fee for other audit, reviews and certifications 3,624 3,340
6,000 5,500

L4
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25.3

26.

27.

28.1

29,

30.

Other provisions / write offs

(Reversal of provisions) / provisions against other assets
Provision against advance for purchase of property
Leasehald renovation written off

OTHER CHARGES

Penalties imposed by the State Bank of Pakistan
TAXATION

For the year

Current taxation
Deferred {axation

ALBARAKA BANK (PAKISTAN) LIMITED

2013 2012
Note = e {Rupees ‘000) —----
Restated
12.2 (25,113) 48,440
10.1 125,840 62,920
9,101 -
109,828 111,360
18,696 60
271 (67,248) (33,388)
59,619 344,861
(7,628) 311,473

The charge for current tax represents minimum tax in accordance with section 113 of the fncome Tax Ordinance, 2001.

LOSS PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED

Loss after taxation for the year

Weighted average number of ordinary shares

Basic / diluted loss per share (Rupee)

(41.231) {844 .940)
2013 2M2

Number of shares

893,520,000

893,520.000
Rupee
Restated
{0.72)

28.1 {0.05}

There were no convertible / dilutive potential ordinary shares outstanding as at 31 December 2013 and 31 December 2012.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Cash and balances with treasury banks
Balances with other banks

STAFF STRENGTH

Permanent

Temporary / on contractual basis

Consultants

Bank's own staff strength at the end of the year

Qutsourced

Total Staff Strength

2013 2012
{Rupees '000) --—

6 5,727,407 4,221,381
7 16,565,377 6,712,477
22,292,784 10,933,858

2013 2012

S \[Y7)7) -1 JE—

979 918

148 148

2 2

1,129 1,068

248 225

1,377 1,293

LY
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31.2

3.3

3.4

M35

31.6

3.7

31.8

DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN

ALBARAKA BANK (PAKISTAN) LIMITED

The Bank operaies funded gratuity scheme for ali its permanent empioyees. The benefits under the graiuity scheme are
payable on retirement at the age of 60 or earlier cessation of service, in lump sum. The benefit is equal to one month's last
drawn basic salary for each compleied year of service. subject to a minimum of three years of service.

Significant Actuarial Assumptions

Financial assumptions
- Valuation discount rate
- Salary increase rate

Demographic assumptions

- Mortality rates (for death in service)
- Rates of employee turnover

Fair value of plan assets and present value of obligation

Present value of defined benefit obligation
Fair value of plan assets

Movement in the present value of defined benefit obligation

Obligation at the beginning of the year
Current service cost

Interest cost

Benefits paid

Actuarial loss / (gain) on obligations
Obligation at the end of the year

Movement in the fair value of plan assets

. Fair value at the beginning of the year
Expected return on plan assets
Contributions
Benefits paid
Actuarial gain / (loss) on plan assets
Fair value at the end of the year

Movement in receivable to defined benefit plan

Opening balance

Charge for the year

Bank's contribution to the fund made during the year
Re-measurements recognized in OCI

Closing balance

Defined benefit cost for the year

Service cost
Current service cost

Net Interest Cost
Interest cost on defined benefit obligation
Return on plan assets
Net Interest cost

Re-measurements recognized in OCI during the year

Actuarial loss / (gain) on obligations
Actuarial (gain} / loss on assets

Total defined benefit cost recognized in P&L and OCI

Actual return on plan assets

30

Note

314 &31.10
3M.5&31.12
31.6

.7

31.7 & 31.11

31.11

2013
Per annum

13.0%
11.5%

Adjusted SLIC

2001-05
Moderate

2013

2012
Per annum

11.5%
11.5%

Adjusted EFU
1961-66
Moderate

-«--- (Rupees '000) -—---

203,381 159,417
(210,331) (173,568)
(6,950) (14.151)
159,417 134,652
30,778 31,332
17,197 15,719
(19,753) (17,800)
15,742 (4,486)
203,381 159,417
173,568 146,838
20,775 19,152
33,929 30,563
(19,753) (17,800)
1,812 (5,185}
210,331 173,568
(14,151) (12,186)
27,200 27,899
(33,929) (30,563)
13,930 699
(6,950) (14,151)
30,778 31,332
17,497 15,719
20,775 19,152
(3,578) (3,433)
27,200 27,899
15,742 (4,4886)
(1,812 5,185
13,930 699
41,130 28,508
22,587 13,967
ra”)
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ALBARAKA BANK (PAK_ISTAN) LIMITED
2013

-- {Rupeas '000) -

31.9 Expected contributions to be paid to the funds in the next financizal year

Service cost
Current service cost 49,768
Net interest Cost
interest cost on defined benefit obligation 26,163
Return on plan assets {29,508}
(3,345)
46,423
31.10 Analysis of present value of defined benefit obligations
Vested / Non-Vested
Vested benefits 197,576
Non-vested benefits 5,805
203,381
Type of Benefits
Accumulated benefit obligation 100,576
Amounts attributed to future salary increases 102,805
203,381
31.11 Re-measurements recognized in OCI during the year
Re-measurements: Actuarial loss / (gain) on obligation
Due to change in financial assumptions {21,651)
Due to change in demographic assumptions 13,548
Due to change in experience adjustments 23,845
15,742
Re-measurements: Net return on pian assets over interest income
Actual return on plan assets 22,587
Interest income on plan assets {20,775)
1,812
13,930
31.12 Components of plan assets
Cash and cash equivalents 186,355
Investment in mutual funds 23,976
. 210,331
31.13 Maturity profile of the defined benefit obligation 2013
13.66 years

Weighted average duration of the defined benefit obligation

Distribution of timing of benefit payments
Less than 12 months 47,625
Between 1 year and 5 years 85,981

Between 6 and 10 years 126,661
Above 10 years 879,856
31.14 Sensitivity Analysis on significant actuarial assumptions: Actuarial Liability
Discount Rate +1% 196,102
Discount Rate -1% 211,824
Salary increase +1% 215,183
194,381

Salary increase -1%
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34,

341

ALBARAKA BANK (PAKISTAN) LIMITED

DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN

~al

The Bank also operaies a recognized contribuiory provident fund for ali permanent employees. Equal monthly contributions arg made, both by
the Bank and the employees, to the fund at a rate of 10% of basic saiary.

2013 2012
—mes {Rupees '000) -

Contribution from the Bank 38,914 38,644
Contribution from the employees 38,914 38,644
77,828 77,288

COMPENSATION OF DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVES

President / Chief Executive Officer Directors Executives

2013 2012 2013 2012 2013 2012
Rupees in '000

Managerial remuneration 17,062 15,464 - - 219,392 207,931
Charge for defined benefit plan 1,422 1,289 - - 17,146 16,354
Contribution to defined contribution plan 1,706 1,546 - . 20,312 19,469
Rent and house maintenance 5119 4,639 - - 64,547 60,952
Utilities allowance 1,706 1,546 - - 21,516 20,317
Medical allowance 1,706 1,546 - - 21,516 20,317
Bonus 3,840 5,120 - - 18,020 8,773
Conveyance 815 91 8,675 9,637 120 120
Fee . - 10,573 6,738 - -
Others 6,020 3,000 - - 54,053 40,515
39,396 34,241 19,248 16,376 436,622 394,748
Number of persons 1 1 10 10 215 208

In addition to the above, the Bank also provides cars to the Chief Executive Officer and certain executives for their own use.
FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Fair valug is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, petween knowledgeable willing parties in an arm's length
transaction.

The fair value of traded investments is based on quoted market prices, except for tradable securities classified by the Bank as 'held to maturity’
(if any). These securities are carried at amortized cost in order to comply with the requirements of BSD Circular No.14 dated 24 September

2004

Fair value of unguoted equity investments is determined on the basis of break up value of these investments as per the latest available financial
statements.

Fair value of islamic financing and related assets, other liabilities and fixed term deposits cannot be calculated with sufficient reliability due to
absence of current and active market for such assets and liabilities and reliable data regarding market rates for similar instruments. The
provision for impairment of islamic financing has been catcutated in accordance with the Bank's accounting policy as stated in relevant note to
these financial statements.

VO
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35,

ALBARAKA BANK (PAKISTAN) LIMITED

The repricing profile and maturity are stated in note 41 and 43 to these financial statements.
in the opinion of the management, the fair value of the remaining financial assets and liabilities are not significantly different

from their carrying values since assets and liabilities are either short term in nature or in the case of customer istamic
financing and deposits are frequently repriced.

Off - balance sheet financial instruments

2013 2012
Book value  Fair value Book value Fair value
Rupees in '000
Forward purchase of foreign exchange 2,277,858 2,320,863 3,206,047 3,254,692
Forward agreement for borrowing - - - -
Forward sale of foreign exchange 2,787,136 2,781,334 2,946,818 2,965,259
Forward agreement for lending - - - -
SEGMENT DETAILS WITH RESPECT TO BUSINESS ACTIVITIES
2013
Corporate  Trading & Retail Commercial Payment &
Finance Sales Banking Banking _ Settlement
Rupees in '000
Total income 14,386] 3,291,142 507,044 2,909,348 2,842
Total expenses - 3,242,756 673,455 2,649,782 -
Net income / {ioss) 14,386 43,386 {166,411} 59,566 2,842
Segment return on assets (ROA) (%} - 7.19% 9.89% 7.48% 0.39%
Segment cost of funds (%) - 6.19% B.18% 6.19% 6.19%
2013
Corporate  Trading & Retail Commercial Payment &
Finance Sales Banking Banking Seftlement
Rupees in '000
Segment assels (gross of provisions) - 45,776,022 5,128,510, 38,911,705 736,985
Segment non performing financing (NPF) - - 123,027 5,125,024 -
Segment provision required against NPF - - 64,367 2,729,451 -
Segment liabilities - 1,158,571 24,330,781 55,696,247 725,612
2012-Restated
Corporate  Trading & Retail Commercial Payment &
Finance Sales Banking Banking Settlement
Rupees in '000
Total income 14,184| 3,562,658 481,155 2,617,260 2,034
Total expenses - 3,330,269 683,031 3,308,931
Net income / {ioss) 14,184 232,389 {201,876) (691,671} 2,034
Segment return on assets (ROA) (%} - 8.78% 11.88% 8.30% 0.48%
Segment cost of funds (%) - 7.83% 7.83% 7.83% 7.83%
2012-Restated
Corporate  Trading & Retail Commercial Payment &
Finance Sales Banking Banking  Settlement
Rupees in '000
Segment assets (gross of provisions) - 40,570,296 4,056,508| 31,539,946 426,483
Segment non performing financing (NPF) - - 151,096) 5,941,930 -
Segment provision required against NPF - - 62,558 2,664,117 -
Segment liabilities - - 33,942,055] 33,158,394 746,649
YA~
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ALBARAKA BANK (PAKISTAN) LIMITED

36. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

36.1 Related pariies comprise of key management, parent bank, shareholders of the Bank, entities having directors in common with
the Bank and staff retirement funds.

The details of transactions with related parties during the year are as follows!

34

2013 2012
ammme—-{RUpees '000)---m--mm-
Key management personnel Restated
Islamic financing and related assets
At beginning of the year 77,318 48,640
Additions during the year 70,182 39,377
Deletions during the year {30,838) {10,698
At end of the year 116,663 77,319
Deposits
At beginning of the year 142,535 135,868
Additions during the year 376,945 312,677
Deletions during the year (347,749) (306,010)
. At end of the year 171,731 142,535
. Other Balances
Return payable on deposit 568 338
Profit receivable on istamic financing and related assets 84 68
Transactions, income and expenses
Profit earned on islamic financing and related assets 4,439 3,005
Return on deposits expenses 11,654 9,316
Salaries, allowances and benefits 156,138 148,542
Parent Bank
Unremitted head office expenses 95,704 95,704
Sub-ordinated debt 1,158,571 -
Shareholders, entities having directors in common with the Bank
and retirement benefit plan of the Bank
Deposits
At beginning of the year 541,574 455,799
. Additions during the year 938,113 362,548
Deletions during the year {761,470) (276,773
At end of the year 718,217 541 574
Other balances
Return payable on deposits 4,579 2,158
Investments 52,200 52,200
Provision for diminution in value of investment 25,088 27,353
Non funded exposure 281,120 457 673
Payabie to shareholders 2,098 2,008
Transactions, income and expenses
Return on deposits expenses 48,601 31,443
Retirement benefit ptan
Receivable in respect of defined benefit plan 6,950 14,151
Contribution to defined contribution plan 38,914 38,643
Contribution to defined benefit pian 27,200 27,899
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: ALBARAKA BANK (PAKISTAN) LIMITED
37 CAPITAL - ASSESSMENT AND ADEQUACY

37.1 Capital Adeguacy Framework

As per requirements of SBP, the Bank is required to comply with the capital adequacy framework which comprises of the
following capital standards :

i) Minimum Capital Requirement (MCR):

As per the requirements of SBP, the banks/DFIs are required to have a minimum paid up capital (net of losses) of Rs 10
billion as of 31 December 2013, Further the banks / DFIs are also required to maintain a capital adequacy ratio of 10%
at all times.

In order to meet the regulatory capital requirements, the Bank has prepared a capitatization plan which was submitted
to SBP. The SBP vide its letter no. BPRL/BA&CP/608/019652/2013 dated 28 December 2013 has allowed the Bank to
proceed with the plan as follows!

) The Bank is reguired to maintain a minimum paid up capital {net of losses) (MCR) of at least Rs. 6 billion at alli
fimes and will have to mest the full MCR of Rs 10 billion by 31 December 2016.

il As a short term arrangement, the Bank has been aliowed to raise a foreign currency sub-ordinated debt of Rs.
1,158.571 (USD 11) million from its sponsor (AlBaraka). The said sub-ordinated debt has been deposited as non-
. remunerative deposit with SBP.

i} The above fareign currency deposit with the SBP shall be increased to Rs. 2.1 billion by 31 December 2014 and
Rs. 2.8 biliion by 31 December 2015.

iv) The foreign currency sub-ordinated debt will not be withdrawn unless the Bank achieves full compliance with MCR.

However any withdrawal will be subject to prior approval of the SBP. In the event the Bank is not MCR complaint by
31 December 2016, the sub-ordinated debt will be converted into the paid up capital of the Bank.

v)  For regulatory purposes, the foreign currency_sub—ordinated debt is allowed to be included in the Bank's capital.
ii} Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR):
The Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR) assesses the capital requirement based on the risks faced by the banks.
During the year, the SBP issued revised instructions on the computation of CAR based on BASEL Ili Capital Reform as
published by the Basel Committee on Banking Supervision. These instructions are effective from 31 December 2013

with full implementation intended by 31 December 2019. These instructions also specify the transitional arrangements
from 2013 to 2019,

. As per the Capital plan of the Bank approved by SBP, the Bank is required to maintain a CAR of at least 16%, which
may be reduced depending on the level of MCR maintained as detailed below.

MCR Level CAR requirement

Rs. 6 billion 16%

Rs. 7 billion 15%

Rs. 8 hiliion 14%

Rs. @ billion 13%

Rs. 10 billion As per CAR applicable under Basel lll rules

As of 31 December 2013, the CAR ratio of the Bank works out to 11.87 % .

37.2 Scope of Applications
The Basel-lll framework is applicable to the Bank on a standalone basis as the Bank does not have a subsidiary.

Standardized Approach has been used for calculating the Capital Adequacy for Credit and Market risk, whereas, Basic
Indicator Approach (BIA) is used for Operational Risk Capital Adequacy purposes.

e
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ALBARAKA BANK (PAKISTAN) LIMITED
37.3 Capital Structure

Bank's regulatory capital has been anaiyzed in two tiers;

- Common equity Tier 1 capital (GET 1), which inlcudes fully paid up capital, discount on issuance of shares, statutory reserves as per the financial statements
and accumuiated losses after all regulatory adjsutments applicable on CET 1.

- Tier 2 capital, which inciudes subordinated deby/instrument, general provisions for loan losses (upto a maximum of 1.25% of credit risk weighted assets) and
raserves on revaluation of investments {(uptc a maximum of 45% of the balance in the related revaluafion reserves) eic.

2013 2012
J— T, T -1 | 10 et
Amounts
Amount subject to
Pre - Basel Basel |1
HI
treatment
Common Equity Tier 1 capital (CET1): instruments and reserves
Fully Paig-up Capital/ Capital deposited with SBP 8,935,200 - 8,935,200
Discount on issuance of shares {767,290} - (767,290)
Reserve for issue of honus shares - - -
General/ Statutory Reserves 82,074 - 82,074
Gain/licsses) on derivatives held as cash flow hedge - - -
Accumuiated losses (2,419,224) - (2,368,938}
Minarity Interests arising from CET1 capital instuments issued to third party by consolidated bank
subsidiaries {amount allowed in CET1 capital of the consolidation group} . . -
CET 1 before Regulatory Adjustments 5,830,760 5,681,046
Common Equity Tier 1 capital: Regulatory adjustments

. Intangibles (net of related deferred tax liability) 1,001,353 - 1,081,587
All other intangibles (net of any associated deferred tax liability) - - -
Shartfall of provisions against classified assets 40,581 - 333,998
Deferred tax assets that rely on future profitability excluding those arising from temporary differences - 773,700 -
(net of related tax liability}

Defined-benefit pension fund net assets - - -
Recipracal cross holdings in CET1 capital instruments - - -
Cash flow hedge reserve - - -
Investment in own shares/ CET1 instruments - - -
Securitization gain on sale - - -
Capital shortfall of regulated subsidiaries - - -
Deficit on account of revaluation from bank's haldings of property/ AFS - - -
investments in the capital instruments of banking, financial and insurance entities that are outside the - oo -
scope of regulatory consalidation, where the bank does not awn mare than 10% of the issued share
capital (amount above 10% threshold}
Significant investments in the capital instruments issued by banking, financial and insurance entities - - -
that are outside the scope of regulatary consolidation {amount above 10% threshoid}
Deferred Tax Assets arising from temporary differences (amount above 10% threshold, net of related - 194,076 -
tax liability)
Amount exceading 15% threshold - - -
af which: significant investments in the common stocks of financial entities - - -
" of which: deferred tax assets arising from temporary differences - - -
National specific regulatory adjustments applied to CET1 capital - - -
Investment in TFCs of other banks exceeding the prescribed limit - - -
) Any other deduction specified by SBP - -

. Regulatory adjustment applied to CET1 due to insufficient AT1 and Tier 2 to cover deductions - - -
Total regulatory adjustments applied to CET1 1,041,934 967,776 1,415,583
Common Equity Tier 1 (a) 4,788,826 - 4,465,463
Additional Tier 1 {AT 1) Capital
Qualifying Additional Tier-1 instruments pius any related share premium - - -

af which: Classified as equity - - -

of which: Classified as liabilities - - -
Additional Tier-1 capital instruments issued by consolidated subsidiaries and held by third parties - - -
(amount aliowed in group AT 1)

of which: instrument issued by subsidiaries subject to phase out - - -
AT1 before regulatory adjustments - - -
Additional Tier 1 Capital: regulatory adjustments
Investment in mutual funds exceeding the prescribed limit {SBP specific adjustment) - - -
Investment in own AT1 capital instruments - - -
Reciprocal cross holdings in Additional Tier 1 capital instruments - - -
Investments in the capital instruments of banking, financial and insurance entities that are outside the - - -
scope of regulatory consolidation, where the bank does not own more than 10% of the issued share
capital (amount above 10% threshald)
Significant investments in the capital instruments issued by banking, financial and insurance entities - - -
that are outside the scope of regulatory consolidation
Portion of deduction applied 50:50 to core capital and supplementary capital based on pre-Basel lll - - -
treatment which, during transitional period, remain subject to deduciion from tier-1 capital
Regulatory adjustments applied to Additional Tier 1 due to insufficient Tier 2 1o cover deductions - - -
Total of Regulatory Adjustment applied to AT1 capifat - - -
Additional Tier 1 capital - - -
Additional Tier 1 capital recognized for capital adequacy {b) - - -
Tier 4 Capital {CET1 + admissible AT1) (c=a+h) 4,788,326 - 4 465,463
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2013 2012
p— Y1171 ] 11 Ry
Amounts

Amount subject to
Pre - Basel Basel fl
L]
treatment

Tier 2 Capital
Qualifying Tier 2 capital instruments under Basel 1ll 1,158,571 . -
Capital instruments subject to phase out arrangement from tier 2 (Pre-Basel I instruments) - - -
Tier 2 capital instruments issued to third party by consolidated subsidiaries {amount allowed in group - - -
tier 2}

of which: instrumeénts issued by subsidiaries subject to phase out - - -
General Provisions or general reserves for loan losses-up to maximurm of 1.25% of Credit Risk 14,943 - 11,767
Weighted Assets
Revaluation Reserves . . -

of which: Revaluation reserves on Property -

of which: Unrealized Gains/Losses on AFS 7,845 - 62,286
Foreign Exchange Translation Reserves - - - -
Undisclosed/Other Reserves (if any) - - -
T2 pefore regulatory adjustments - - -
Tiar 2 Capital: regulatory adjustments - - -
Portian of deduction appiied 50:50 to core capital and supplementary capital based on pre-Basel lll - - -
treatment which, during transitionai period, remain subject to deduction from tier-2 capital
Reciprocal cross holdings in Tier 2 instruments - - -
Invesiment in own Tier 2 capital instrument - - -
Invesiments in the capital instruments of banking, financial and insurance entities that are outside the - - -

. scape of regulatary consolidation, where the bank doas not own more than 10% of the issued share

capital {amount above 10% threshold)
Significant investments in the capital instruments issued by banking, financial and insurance entities - - -
that are outside the scope of regulatory consolidation
Amount of Regulatory Adjustment applied to T2 capital - - -
Tier 2 capital {T2) - - -
Tier 2 capital recognized for capital adequacy - - -
Excess Additional Tier 1 capital recognized in Tier 2 capital - - -

Total Tier 2 capital admissible for capital adequacy {d) 1,181,358 - 74,053
TOTAL CAPITAL (T1 + admissible T2) (e=c+d) 5,970,185 - 4,539,516
Total Risk Weighted Assets (i=i+g+h) 49,881,552 - 40,616,100
Total Credit Risk Weighted Assets N 45,756,965 - 36,724,239
Risk weighted assets in respect of amounts subject to Pre-Base! 1l Treatment 2,418,440 - -

of which: recognized portion of investment in capital of banking, financial and insurance entities ) - -
where holging is more than 10% of the issued common share capital of the entity

af which: deferred tax assets 2,418,440 - -
af which: Defined-benefit pension fund net assets - - -
of which: - - -
Total Market Risk Weighted Assets (@) 99,866 - 278,907
Total Operational Risk Weighted Assets : {h) 4,024,724 - 3,612,954
Capital Ratios and buffers (in percentage of risk weighted assets)
CET1 to total RWA {ali) 9.60% - 10.99%
. Tier-1 capital to total RWA (cli} 9.60% - 10.99%
Total capital to RWA e/l 11.97% - 11.18%

Bank specific buffer requirement {minimum CET1 requirement plus capital conservation buffer plus any - - -
other buffer requirement)
of which: capital conservation buffer requirement - -
of which: cauntercyclical buffer requirement - -
of which: D-SIB or G-SI8 buffer requirement - - -
CET1 available to meet buffers {as a percentage of risk weighted assets) - - -

National minimum capital requirements prescribed by SBP

CET1 minimum ratio 5.00%
Tier 1 minimum ratio 6.50%
Total capital minimurm ratio 10.00%

Amounts below the thresholds for deduction (before risk weighting)

Non-significant investments in the capital of othar financial entifies 27,112
Significant investments in the comman stock of financial entities -
Daferred tax assets arising from temporary differences {net of retated tax liabiiity) 478,883

Appilicable caps on the inclusion of provisions in Tier 2

Provisions eligible for inclusion in Tier 2 in respect of exposures subject 1o standardized approach - -
(prior to application of cap)

Cap on inciusion of provisions in Tier 2 under standardized approach - -
Provisions eligibte for inclusion in Tier 2 in respact of exposures subject to internal ratings-based - - -
approach (prior to application of cap)

Cap for inclusion of provisions in Tier 2 under imernat ratings-based approach - -

f(n)/‘
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37.4 Risk-Weighted Exposures

Credit Risk

Balance Sheet ltems
Cash and other liguid assets
Money at call
Investments
tstamic financing and related assets
Operating fixed assets

Other Assets

Off Balance Sheet items
Loan Repayment Guarantees
Purchase and Resale Agreements
Performance Bonds etc
Revolving underwriting Commitments
Stand By Letters of Credit
Outstanding .Foreign Exchange Contracts

-Purchase

-Sale

Credit risk-weighted exposures

Market Risk
General market risk
Specific market Risk

Market risk-weighted exposures

Operational Risk

Total Risk-Weighted Exposures

2013

ALBARAKA BANK (PAKISTAN) LIMITED

emmemme———-RUpPEES N 000 mernmmmeae

2012
------- Rupees in ‘000--~«~-rrmr--

Base! lll
Book Value Risk Adjusted Book Value Risk Adjusted

Value Value
22,292,784 3,479,004 10,933,858 1,427,278
- - 1,100,000 220,000
22,161,962 1,529,313 27,421,461 2,649,500
37,020,651 27,990,313 28,782,448 23,089,775
2,725,675 1,724,400 2,629,176 1,547.588
3,588,282 5,525,226 2,999,615 2,997,124
87,789,354 40,248,256 73,866,558 31,831,265
6,858,409 4,090,730 6,827,104 4,036,051
1,680,505 336,101 897,336 179,467
5,007,432 999,032 2,740,836 498,618
2,320,883 68,139 3,254,692 62,588
2,781,334 14,707 2,965,259 16,250
18,648,542 5,508,708 16,685,227 4,792,974
45,756,965 36,724,239
99,866 278,907
99,866 278,907
4,024,721 3,612,954
49,881,552 40,616,100
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37.5.1 Reconcilliafion of accounting and reguiatory scope of

37.5 Capital Structure Reconciliation

reporting

Assets

Cash and balances with treasury banks
Balanced with other banks

Lending to financial institutions
investments

tslamic financing and related assets
Operating fixed assets

Deferred tax assets

Other assets

Total assets

Liabilities & Equity

Bills payable

Due to financial institutions

Deposits and other accounts

Sub-ordinated loans

Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease
Deferred tax kabilities

Cther liabilities

Total liabilities

Represenied by

Share capital

Reserves

Accumulated loss

Minority Interest

Surplus on revaluation of assets-net of tax
Total equity

Total liabilities & equity

Assefs
Cash and balances with treasury banks
Balanced with other banks
Due from financial institutions
Investments
of which: Non-significant capital investments in capital of
other financial institutions exceeding 10% threshold
of which: significant capital investments in financial
sector entities exceeding regulatory threshold
of which: Mutual Funds exceeding regulatory threshold
of which: reciprocal crossholding of capital instrument
of which: others
istamic financing and related assets
shortfall in provisions/ excess of total EL amount over
eligible provisions under IRB
general provisions reflected in Tier 2 capital

Fixed Assets
of which: Goodwill
of which: Intangibles
Deferred Tax Assets
of which: DTAs excluding those arising from lemporary
differences
of which: DTAs arising from temporary differences
exceeding regulatory threshold
QOther assets

of which: Defined-benefit pension fund net assets
Total assets
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17.5.2 Reconciliation for balance sheet items that require capital adjustments

Reference to Note As per published
37.5.3

ALBARAKA BANK (PAKISTAN) LIMITED

Under regulatory

financial scope of
statements reporting for
capital adeguacy
2013 2013
------------- Rupees in '000--w----nnnen
5,727,407 5,727,407
16,565,377 16,565,377
22,161,963 22,161,983
37,020,644 37,020,844
2,725,753 2,725,75
1,431,064 1,431,064
2,127,196 2,127,196
87,759,404 87,759,404
725,609 725,609
2,201,945 2,201,945
75,647,097 75,647.097
1,158,571 1,158,571
2,177,989 2,177,989
81,911,211 81,911,211
8,167,910 8,167,910
§2,074 82,074
(2,418,224) (2,419,224)
17,433 17,433
5,848,183 5,848,193
87.759.404 87,759.404
5,727,407 5,727,407
16,565,377 16,565,377
22,161,963 22,161,963
37,020,644 37,020,644
40,581 40,581
14,943 14,943
2,726,753 2725753
1,001,353 1,001,353
1,431,064 1,431,064
773,700 773,700
194,076 194,076
2,127,196 2,127,196
B7.759.404 87,759,404

v/




ALBARAKA BANK (PAKISTAN) LIMITED

As per published Under regulatory
financial scope of
statements reporting for

capital adequacy
2013 2013

--------- -~Rupees in "000-—-—-—-wreemmeemn

Liabilities & Equity

Bills payable 725,609 725,609
Due te financial institutions 2,201,945 2,201,945
Deposits and other accounts 75,647 097 75,647,097
Sub-ordinated loans - -
of which: eligible for inclusion in AT1 m - -
of which: eligible for inclusion in Tier 2 n 1,158,571 1,158,571
Liabilities against assets subject to finance lease - -
Deferred tax liabilites - -
of which. DTLs related fo goodwill o - -
of which: DTLs related fo intangible assets P - -
of which: DTLs related to defined pension fund net assets q - -
of which; other deferred tax liabilities t - -
Other liabilities 2,177,989 2,177,989
Total liabilities 81,911,211 81,911,211
. Share capital
of which: amount eligible for CET1 5 8,167,910 8,167,910
of which: amount eligible for AT1 t - -
Reserves 82,074 82,074
of which: portion eligible for inclusion in CET1 u - 82,074
of which: portion eligible for inclusion in Tier 2 v - -
Accumnulated losses W {2,419,224) {2,419,224)
Minority Interest - -
of which: portion eligible for inclusion in CET1 x - -
of which: portion eligible for inclusion in AT?: v - -
of which: portion eligitie for inclusion in Tier 2 z - -
Surplus on revaluation of assets -
of which: Revaluation reserves on Property aa -
of which: Unrealized Gains/Losses on AFS 17.433 17,433
In case of Deficit on revaluation (deduction from CET1) ah -
Total liabilities 5,848,193 5,930,267
Total Equity 87,752,404 87.841478
Source based on Component of
reference number  regulatory capital
. from Note 37.5.2 reported by Bank

Rupees in '000
37.5.3 Reconciliation of computation of capitat with balance sheet of the Bank

Common Equity Tier 1 capital (CET1): Instruments and reserves
Fully Paid-up Capital/ Capital deposited with SBP (s) 8,167,810
Balance in Share Premium Account -
Reserve for issue of Bonus Shares

General/ Statutory Reserves (u)
Gain/(Losses) on derivatives held as Cash Flow Hedge

Accumulated losses (W)
Minority Interests arising from CET1 capital instruments {x)
issued to third party by consolidated bank subsidiaries

(amount allowed in CET1 capital of the consolidation group)

CET 1 before Reguiatory Adjustments

82,074

(2,419,224)

5,830,760
{ M
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ALBARAKA BANK (PAKISTAN) LIMITED

Common Equity Tier 1 capital: Regulatory adjustments

Goodwill (net of related deferred tax liability) (N -(0) -
All other intangibles (net of any associated deferred tax liabiiity) &) - (p) 1,001,353
Shortfall of provisions against classified assets (fi 40,581
Deferred tax assets that rely on future profitability excluding {(h)- (1} * 0% -
those arising from temporary differences (net of related tax

liability)

Defined-benefit pension fund net assets HOE {q)} * 0% -
Reciprocal cross holdings in CET1 capital instruments (dy -

Cash fiow hedge reserve -
Investment in own shares/ CET1 instruments -
Securitization gain on sale -
Capital shortfall of regulated subsidiaries -

Deficit on account of revaluation fram bank’s holdings of (ab) -
property! AFS
Investments in the capital instruments of banking, financial {(a) - (ac) - {ae) -

and insurance entities that are outside the scope of reguiatory
consolidation, where the bank does not own more than 10%
of the issued share capital (amount above 10% threshotd)

Significant investments in the capital instruments issued by (b) - (ad) - (af) -
. banking, financial and insurance entities that are outside the

scope of regulatory consolidation (amount above 10%

threshold)

Deferred Tax Assets arising fram temporary differences 1) -

(amount abave 10% threshold, net of related tax liability)
Amoaunt exceeding 15% threshold -

of which: significant investments in the common stocks of -
financial entities

of which: deferred tax assets arising from temporary -
differences )
National specific regulatory adjusiments applied to CET1 -
capital

investment in TFCs of other banks exceeding the -
prescribed limit

Any other deduction specified by SBP (mention details) -
Regulatory adjustment appiied to CET1 due to insufficient -
AT1 and Tier 2 to cover deductions
Total regulatory adjustments applied to CET1 1,041,934

Common Equity Tier 1 4,788,826

. Additional Tier 1 (AT 1) Capital

Qualifying Additional Tier-1 instruments plus any related -

share premium

of which: Ciassified as equity (t) -

of which: Ciassified as liabilities {m) -

Additional Tier-1 capital instrumenits issued by consalidated ) -

subsidiaries and held by third parties (amount allowed in
group AT 1)

of which: instrument issued by subsidiaries subject to -

phase out

AT1 before regulatory adjustments -

%
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ALBARAKA BANK (PAKISTAN) LIMITED

Additional Tier 1 Capital: regulatory adjustments
investment in mutual funds exceeding the prescribed limit -
{SBP specific adjustment)
Investment in ownr: AT1 capital instruments -
Reciprocal cross hoidings in Additional Tier 1 capital -
instruments
Investments in the capital instruments of banking, financial (ac) -
and insurance entities that are outside the scope of regulatory
consolidation, where the bank does not own more than 10%
of the issued share capital (amount above 10% threshold)

Significant investments in the capital instruments issued by (ad) -
banking, financial and insurance entities that are outside the
scope of regulatory consolidation

Partion of deduction applied 50:50 to core capital and -
supplementary capital based on pre-Basel !l treatment which,
during transitional period, remain subject to deduction from
tier-1 capital

Regulatcry adjustments applied to Additional Tier 1 due to -
insufficient Tier 2 to cover deductions
Total of Regulatory Adjustment applied to AT1 capital -
Additional Tier 1 capital

Additional Tier 1 capital recognized for capital adequacy -

Tier 1 Capital (CET1 + admissible AT1) 4,788,826
Tier 2 Capital
Qualifying Tier 2 capital instruments under Basel |l (n) 1,158,571

Capital instruments subject to phase out arrangement from -
tier 2 (Pre-Basel lll instruments)
Tier 2 capital instruments issued to third party by consolidated {z) -
subsidiaries (amount allowed in group tier 2)

of which: instruments issued by subsidiaries subject to -
" phase out
General Provisions or general reserves for loan losses-up to (2) 14,943
maximum of 1.25% of Credit Risk Weighted Assets
Revaluation Reserves eligible for Tier 2 . ' -

of which: portion pertaining to Property portion of {aa) -

of which: portion pertaining to AFS securities 7,845
Foreign Exchange Translation Reserves (v} -
Undisclosed/Other Reserves (if any) -
T2 before regulatory adjustments 1,181,358

Tier 2 Capital: regulatory adjustments
Portion of deduction applied 50:50 to core capital and -
supplementary capital based on pre-Basel |1l treatment which,
during transitional period, remain subject ta deduction from
tier-2 capital

Reciprocal cross holdings in Tier 2 instruments -
Investment in own Tier 2 capital instrument
Investments in the capital instruments of banking, financial {(ag) -
and insurance entities that are outside the scope of regulatory
consolidation, where the bank does not own more than 10%
of the issued share capital (amount above 10% threshoid)

Significant investments in the capital instruments issued by (af) -
banking. financial and insurance entities that are outside the
scope of regutatory consolidation

Amourt of Regulatory Adjustment applied to T2 capital

Tier 2 capital (T2) 1,181,358

Tier 2 capital recognized for capital adequacy 1,181,359

Excess Additional Tier 1 capital recognized in Tier 2 capital -

Total Tier 2 capital admissible for capital adequacy 1,181,359

TOTAL CAPITAL (T1 + admissible T2) 5,970,185
e
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37.6 Main Features Template of Regulatory Capital Instruments

37.6.1 Common shares
1 |}lssuer Al Baraka Bank (Pakistan)} Limited
2 |Unigue identifier (eg KSE Symbol or Bloomberg identifier etc.} Not Applicable
3 |Governing law(s) of the instrument Laws applicable in Pakistan
4 [Regulatory treatment
5 Transitional Basel Il rules Common equity Tier 1
& Post-transitional Basel lil rules Common equity Tier 1
7 Eligible at solo/ group/ group&solo Standalone
8 Instrument type Comimon shares
9 |Amount recognized in regulatory capital (Currency in PKR thousands, as of reporting 4,788,826
10 |Par value of instrument PKR 10
11 |Accounting classification Shareholder equity
12 |Original date of issuance 2005-2010
13  |Perpetual or dated Perpetual
14 QOriginal maturity date No maturity
15 |Issuer call subject to prior supervisory approval No
16 Optional call date, contingent call dates and redemption amount Not Applicable
17 Subsequent call dates, if applicable Not Applicable
18 |Coupons / dividends
19 Fixed or fioating dividend/ coupon Not Applicable
20 coupon rate and any related index/ benchmark Not Applicable
19 Existence of a dividend stopper No
20 Fully discretionary, partially discretionary or mandatory Fuily Discretionary
21 Existence of step up or other incentive fo redeem No
22 Noncumulative or cumulative Not Appiicable
25 |Convertible or non-convertible Non-convertible
26 if convertible, conversion trigger {s) Not Applicable
27 If convertible, fully or partially ] Not Applicable
28 If convertible, conversion rate Not Applicable
29 If convertible, mandatory or optional conversion Not Applicable
30 If convertible, specify instrument type convertible into Not Applicable
3 If convertible, specify issuer of instrument it converts into Not Applicable
23 IWrite-down feature Not Applicable
33 If write-down, write-down trigger(s) Not Applicable
34 If write-down, full or partial Not Applicable
35 If write-down, permanent or temporary Not Applicable
36 If temporary write-down, description of write-up mechanism Not Applicable
54 |Position in subordination hierarchy in liquidation (specify instrument type immediately Not Applicable
25 Nor;-compiiant fransitioned features No

37.6.2 Subordinated Debt

As referred to in note 1.2 to these financial statements, the Bank has entered into a sub-ordinated loan agreement with
Albaraka Istamic Bank BSC (the major sponsor). In terms of the said agreement a sub-ordinated loan of Rs. 1,158.571
million (USD 11 million) has been provided to the Bank. No return will be payable on the loan and the joan stands sub-
ordinated to all other creditors, depositors and third party obligations of the Bank. The loan is intended to bridge the
regulatory capital shortfall of the Bank and will only be repaid if and when the Bank is compliant with the MCR requirements.
in the event the Bank is not MCR compliant by 31 December 2018, the loan will be converted into the paid up capital of the
Bank. As per the terms of the agreement, the proceeds of the loan shall be placed by the Bank in an interest free deposit
account maintained by the Bank with the SBP in US Dollars. As per SBP letter BPRD/ BA&CP/B08/019652/2013, the
subordinated debt has been included in the Bank's capital for regulatory purposes.

U
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38.

38.1

ALBARAKA BANK (PAKISTAN) LIMITED

RISK MANAGEMENT

This seciion presents information about Bank's exposure to and its management and control of risks, in pariicular the
primary risks associated with its use of financial instruments:

- Credit risk is the risk of loss resulting from client or counterparty default.

- Market risk is exposure to market variables such as benchmark rates, exchange rates and equity indices.

- Liquidity risk is the potential for loss to the Bank arising from either its inability to meet its obligations or to fund
increases in assets as they fall due without incurring an unacceptable cost.

- Operationat risk is the risk of loss resulting from inadequate or failed internal processes, people and system or from
external events,

The objective of risk management is to effectively manage uncertainties that arise in the normal course of business
activities.

The Bank manages the risk through a framework of risk management, policies and principles, organizationat structures, and
risk measurement and monitoring processes that are closely aiigned with the business activities of the Bank.

Risk management principles

- The Board of Directors {the Board) provides overall risk management supervision. The Board Risk Committee (BRC)
regularly monitors the Bank's risk profile.

- The Bank has set up objectives and policies to manage the risks that arise in connection with the Bank's activities. The
risk management framework and policies of the Bank are guided by specific objectives to ensure that comprehensive
and adequate risk management policies are established to mitigate the salient risk elements in the operations of the
Bank.

- The establishment of the overall financial risk management objectives is consistent and tandem with the strategy to
create and enhance shareholders value, while guided by a prudent and robust framework of risk management policies.

- The structure of risk management function is closely aligned with the organizational structure of the Bank.

Risk management organization

The Board through its sub-committee called BRC oversees the overall risk of the Bank. The Risk Management Department
(RMD) is the organizational arm performing the functions of identifying, measuring, monitoring and controlling the various
risk and assists the apex level commitiee and the various sub-committees in conversion of policies into action.

The BRC comprises Executive, Directors, Non Executive Directors and the Chief Risk Officer. One of the Non Executive
directors of the Bank chairs the BRC, who is responsible for ptanning, management and control of the aforementioned risks
of the Bank.

The BRC has delegated some of its tasks of risk management to sub committees which are as follows:

Name of the committees Chaired by
Gredit committee Chief Executive Officer
Asset and liability management committee (ALCO) Chief Executive Officer

Credit commitiee is responsible for approving and monitoring all financing transactions and also the overall quality of the
asset portfolio. For this purpose it has formulated credit policy so as to effectively monitor the risk profile of the Bank’s asset
portfolio and to ensure strict adherence to the SBP's Prudential Regulations, Banking Companies Ordinance, 1962 and any
other regulatory requirement.

ALCO has the responsibility for the formulation of overall strategy and oversight of the assets liability management function.
ALCO monitors the maintenance of liguidity ratios, depositor's concentration both in terms of overall funding mix and
avoidance of reliance on large individual deposits. The Board have approved a comprehensive liquidity management policy.

The Board has constituted an Audit Commitiee. The Audit Committee works to ensure that the best practices of the Code of
Corporate Governance and other policies and procedures are being complied with.

The Bank's Risk Management, Compliance and internal Audit and Legal Departmerts support the risk management
function. The role of the risk management department is to quantify the risk and the quality and integrity of the Bank's risk-
related data. The Compliance Department ensures that all the directives and guidelines issued by SBP are being complied
with in order to mitigate the compliance and operational risks. internal Audit Department reviews the compliance of internal
control procedures with internal and regulatory standards.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of loss to Bank as a result of failure by a client ar counterparty to meet its contractual obligations when
due. Exposure to credit risks for the Bank arises primarily from lending acfivities.

The management of credit risk is governed by credit policies approved by the Board. The procedures set out the relevant
approval authorities, limit, risks, credit ratings and other matters involved in order to ensure sound credit granting standards.

4~
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38.1.1
38.1.1.1

The Bank has a well defined credit structure duly approved by the Bo
levels are operating and which critically scrutinise and sanction credi
trade related islamic financing and related assets to reputable name

The Board of Directors has approved the Internal Credit Risk Rating Palicy for customers, establishing a ra
for identifying and measuring the credit risk against each oblig

t. The empl

ALBARAKA BANK (PAKISTAN) LIMITED

ard under which delegated authorities at various
hasis is to provige short to medium term

s, which are self liquidating and Shariah compliant.
The risk appraisal system of the Bank has enabled it to build a sound portfolio.

ting mechanism
or / transaction. The mechanism considers factors such as

management, financial health and macro / micro economic factors and the facility structuring. The Internal Credit Risk

Rating System which has been implemented in the Ba

three grades have been assigned to classified islamic

role in the decision making, monitoring and capital adequacy process

The Bank classifies a claim as impaired if it considers it likely
obligor's inability to meet its commitments (including profit payments, principa
realisation of any available collateral. Allowances or provision
SBP. The authority to establish allowances, provisions and cre

nk assign

Operations Department and is according to the SBP regulations.

Segmental information

Segments by class of business

Agriculture, forestry, hunting and fishing
Mining and quarrying

Textile

Chemica! and pharmaceuticals

Cement

Sugar

Footwear and leather garments
Automobile and transportation equipment
Electronics and electrical appliances
Construction

Power (electricity), gas, water, sanitary
Wholesale and retail trade

Exportts / imports

Transport, storage and communication
Financial

Insurance

Services

Individuals / staff

Others

Agricutture, forestry, hunting and fishing
Mining and quarrying

Textile

Chemical and pharmaceuficals

Cement

Sugar

Footwear and ieather garments
Automebile and transportation equipment
Electronics and electrical appliances
Caonstruction

Power (electricity), gas, water, sanitary
Wholesale and retall trade

Exports / imports

Transport, storage and communication
Financiat

Insurance

Services

Individuals / staff

Others

s are determined

2013

s risk grades to credit portfolio in nine categories whereas
financing and retated assets. The system has played a significant
es relating to credit risk management.

that it will suffer a loss on that claim as a result of the
| repayments or other payments due) after
in accordance with the requirements of the
dit valuation adjustments for impaired claims, vests in Credit

islamic financing and
related assets (Gross)

Deposits

Contingencies and
commitments

Rupees in'000 Percent Rupees in'000 Percent Rupees in'000 Percent
196,733 0.49% 722,252 0.95% 4,792 0.03%
176,349 0.44% 76,878 0.10% 153,690 0.90%

6,638,267 16.67% 974,426 1.28% 1,099,363 €.45%
3,451,675 8.67% 887,492 1.17% 2,079,016 12.20%
- 0.00% 4,795 0.01% - 0.00%
2,764,124 6.94% 214,351 0.28% 318,661 1.87%
764,395 1.92% 190,51 0.25% 71,202 0.42%
1,033,828 2.60% 118,410 0.16% 66,463 0.39%
686,024 1.72% 324,055 0.43% 714,725 4.18%
1,416,750 3.56% 856,941 1.13% 1,447,055 8.4%%
5,133,587 12.89% 1,272,221 1.68% 1,066,872 6.26%
694,246 1.74% 1,087,877 1.44% 69,334 0.41%
1,203,980 2.02% 866,209 1.15% 768,430 4.51%
1,282,747 3.22% 282,501 3.37% 30,632 0.18%
42,782 0.11% 11,183,985 14.78% 5,824,360 34.18%
3,612 0.01% 206,784 0.27% - 0.00%
§51,400 2.14% 13,396,606 17.71% 210,534 1.24%
1,701,900 4.27% 24,831,423 32.83% 16,055 0.09%
11,772,063 29.57% 18,149,300 23.99% 3,100,015 18.19%
39,814,462 100% 75,647,097 100.00% 17,038,199 100.00%
2012
islamic financing and Deposits Contingencies and
related assets (Gross) commitments

Rupees in '000 Percent Rupees in '000 Percent  Rupees in '000 Percent
136,450 0.43% 1,074,921 1.69% 94,220 0.58%
168,226 0.53% - 0.00% 356,218 2.21%

5,126,100 16.27% 1,001,804 1.58% 660,522 4.10%
2,302,906 7.31% 947,221 1.50% 1,236,790 7.67%
§.406 0.03% 2,648 0.00% 10,258 0.06%
2,031,914 6.45% 225,072 0.36% 34,331 ¢.21%
908,040 2.88% 126,258 0.20% 92,610 0.57%
1,073,257 3.41% 445479 0.70% 38,934 0.24%
954,649 3.03% 621,867 0.98% 506,645 3.14%
1,576,573 5.00% 769,507 1.22% 1,421,989 8.82%
2,268,123 7.20% - 0.00% 300,000 1.86%
747 937 2.37% - 0.00% 173,207 1.07%
678,057 2.15% 1,727,875 2.73% 109,504 0.68%
1,423 444 4.52% 804,852 1.27% 408,225 2.52%
63,161 0.20% 4,640,014 7.33% 5,792,542 42.14%
18,954 0.06% 573,331 0.91% - 0.00%
774,978 2.46% 1,348,405 2.13% 555,151 4.06%
1,189,408 377% 33,743,599 53.33% 26,670 0.17%
10,058,543 31.92% 15,227,802 24.06% - 3,208,180 14.89%
31,509,123 100.00% 63,278,655 100.00% 16,124,006 100.00%
46 pa S
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38.1.1.2 Segment by sector

ALBARAKA BANK (PAKISTAN) LIMITED

2013
tslamic financing and
reiated assets Contingencies and
(Gross) Deposits commitments
Rupees Percent Rupees Percent Rupees Percent
in '000 in '000 in '000
Public / government 2,682,795 6.76% 2,285,426 3.02% 120,498 0.71%
Private 37,121,667 93.24% 73,361,671 96.98% 16,917,701 99.29%
39,814,462 100.00% 75,647,097 100.00% 17,038,199 100.00%
2012
Islamic financing and
related assets Contingencies and
(Gross} Deposits commitments
Rupees Percent Rupees Percent Rupees Percent
in ‘000 in '000 in '000
Pubiic f government 2,466,371 7.83% 2,080,098 3.29% 175,891 1.09%
Private 29,042,752 92.17% 61,198,557 96.71% 15,948,115 98.91%
31,509,123 100.00% 63,278,655 100.00% 16,124,006 100.00%

38.1.1.3 Details of non-performing isiamic financing and related assets and specific provisions by class of business segment

Agriculture, forestry, hunting and fishing
Chemical & pharmaceuticals

Texdile

Footwear & leather garments
Automobile & transportation equipment
Electronics and electrical appliances
Construction

Power (electricity), gas, water, sanitary
Wholesale / retail trade

Exports / imports

Transport, storage and communication
Financial

Services

individuals

Others

38114
and sector

Public / government
Private

47

2013 2012
Classified  Specific Classified Specific
Islamic Provisions Islamic Provisions
Financing Held Financing Heid
{Rupees in 000}

36,501 - 37,049 -
525,639 135,081 533,907 23,685
2,357,549 1,292,123 2,279,172 1,302,053
35,091 34,873 35,091 34,873

1,201 - 824 -
20,905 10,217 21,146 9,400
638,715 481,232 814,457 466,463
4,062 4,062 4,062 4,062
329,860 45,331 345,409 19,521
111,951 100,783 112,277 100,735

357N - 29,721 -
1,898 973 1,898 1,000
44,025 19,032 66,173 33,244
123,027 49,424 151,096 50,792
980,856 605,744 1,660,744 669,080
5,248,051 2,778,875 6,093,026 2,714,908

Details of non-performing islamic financing and related assets and specific provisions by class of business segment

2013 2012
Classified  Specific Classified Specific
islamic Provisions Islamic provisions
financing Heid financing held
{Rupees in "000})
5,248,051 2,778,875 6,093,026 2,714,908
5,248,051 2,778,875 6,093,026 2,714,908
A
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39.

Credit Risk — General Disclosures, Basel Il Specific
The Bank has adopted Standardised Approach, under Based ill.
Credit Risk: Standardized Approach

ALBARAKA BANK (PAKISTAN) LIMITED

The Bank use rating assigned by JCR-VIS and PACRA as External Credit Assessment Institutions (ECAI} for the purpase of
risk weighing its exposure. In the case of forsign currency exposure, ratings assigned by S&P and Moody's have been applied.

Following are the types of exposure for which each agency is used:

Exposure MOODY'S S&P JCR-VIS PACRA
Corporate - - v v
Banks v v v
Sovereigns v - - -
SME's - - v v

Securitisations -

Most of the Bank's asset base is short or medium term. Therefore, the Bank uses the e

exposure without any adjustments.

ntity's rating to assess the risk of its

For exposure amounts after risk mitigation subject to the standardised approach, amount of Bank's outstandings (rated and
unrated } in each risk bucket as well as those that are deducted are as follows:

Rating Amount Deduction
Exposure . - Net Amount
category No. outstanding CRM
Rupees in '000
Corporate 1 4,088,448 - 4,088,448
2 4121725 4,600 4,117,125
3.4 83,545 - 83,545
586 720,963 - 720,963
Unrated 22,369,403 671,645 21,697,758
Banks 1,2,3 18,582,995 3,778 _ 18,584,218
Unrated 925 - 925
Sovereigns efc, 23,492,037 - 23,492 037
PSEs 1 218,667 2,762 408 {2,543,741)
23 6,289 - 6,289
4-5 - - ‘

B - -
Unrated 2,762,408 - 2,762,408
Others 10,300,017 105,804 10,194,213
Total 86,757,422 3,548,233 83,209,189

* CRM= Credit Risk Mitigation
Main types of coliateral taken by the Bank are:
- Cash margin
- Lien an deposits / government securities

- Hypothecation on stocks / assets
- Mortgage on properties

The Bank has adopted simple approach to credit risk mitigation under Basel il and therefare has not applied any haircuts to
the collateral. Moreover the Bank's eligible collateral only includes cash /liquid securities.

GEOGRAPHICAL SEGMENT ANALYSIS

2013
Contingencies
Loss before Total assets Net assets and
taxation employed employed Commitments
Rupees in "000
Pakistan (33,602) 87,759,404 5,848,193 17,068,199
Others - - - -
(33,602) 87,758,404 5,848,183 17,068,189
2012
Contingencies
Profit before Total assets Net assets and
" taxation employed employed Commitments
Rupees in ‘000
Pakistan {956,413) 73,866,558 6,018,460 16,124,606
Others - - - -
{956,413} 73,866,558 6,019,460 16,124,008
48 [ur
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ALBARAKA BANK (PAKISTAN) LIMITED

MARKET RISK

Market risk is the risk that the Bank's earnings or capital, or its ability to meet business objectives, will be adversely affected
by changes in the level or volatility of market rates or prices such as profit rates, credit spreads, commodity prices, equity
prices and foreign exchange rates. In the absence of trading book, the Bank is only exposed 1o benchmark rate risk in the
banking book.

The main objective of the Bank's market risk management is to minimize market risk in the banking book and to facilitate
business growth within a controlled and transparent risk management framework.

Market risk in banking book arise from investment in fixed income securities, equities and dealing in foreign exchange
transactions.

Market risk is being monitored by ALCO and performs following junctions in relation to market risk:
- Regular periodic review of market risk, based on £CoNOMIC review repors.

- Keeps an eye on the structure / composition of Bank's assets and liabilities and decide upon product pricing for
depasits, islamic financing and refated assets.

- Develop future business strategy in view of the latest trends / policy in the market, economic conditions and local
regulatory requirements.

- Review and recommend to the Board of Directors, new opportunities for generating revenues.

Foreign Exchange Risk

Foreign exchange risk arises from the fluctuation in the value of financial instruments consequent to the changes in foreign
exchange rates. Objective of foreign exchange risk management function is to minimize the adverse impact of foreign
exchange assets and liabilities mismatch and maximize the eamings. The Bank manages this risk by setting and monitoring
dealer, currency, inter exposures, stop loss and counter party limits for on and off balance sheet financial instraments.

2013 . 2012 {Restated)
Net foreign Net foreign
- -bal
Assets Liabilities off ba.l ance currency Assets Liabilities Off-balance currency
sheet items sheet items
gxposure exposure
Rupees in 000

Pakistan rupee 50,745,435 45,389,136 458,290 5,814,589 47,508,509 41,391,304 (296,607) 5,821,598
United States dollar 35,655,673 34,867,937 {782,644) 5,092 24,754,709 24,526,837 {25,505) 202,367
Great Britain pound (52,505) 104,319 166,979 10,155 354,296 530,503 143,828 7.621
Euro 887,439 1,030,921 157,376 13,893 759.875 936,372 178,284 1,787
Arab Emirates Dirham 325,887 345,518 - (19,631) 267,613 274192 {6,579)
Japanese Yen 189,946 168,897 - 21,049 174,983 183,368 - (8.885)
Swiss Frank 7,529 4,483 - 3,046 5,573 4,022 1,551
87,759,404 81,911,211 - 5,848,193 73,866,558 67,847,008 - 6,019,460

The exposures of the Bank to foreign exchange risk is also restricted by the statutory limit on aggregate exposure prescribed
by the SBP.

Equity position risk

Equity position risk is the risk arising from taking positions in the equities and all instruments that have a market behaviour
similar to equifies.

Counter parties limits, as also fixed by the SBP, are considered to limit risk concentration. The Bank invests in those equities
which are Shariah compliant as advised by the Shariah advisor.

g~
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ALBARAKA BANK (PAKISTAN) LIMITED

45. PROFIT /(LOSS) DISTRIBUTION TO DEPOSITOR'S POOL
45.1 i
General Profit Sharin Pra:;ti R:t? an Mudarib Share ;z;c:?;asg: of Profit rate Profit rate
Remunerative Ratio 9 ann ugn 9 -t (Rupees in ¢ rr Zre return return
Depositor's Pool ° f:emen '000) rans erre_a earned distributed
period through Hiba
{General poal | 40% | Monthly [ 2,045,916 | 41%] 9.5%] 7.29%)|
Profit Rate and Profit rate
- Profi i i i
Specific Pools rofit Sl'uarlng weightage return earned Profit rate return
Ratio announcement earned by SBP
. of \ERS pool
period
Islamic Export
Refinance (IERS
Pool) 656.5% : 34 5% Monthly 10.56% 8.24%

' GENERAL

48.1 Certain prior year's figures have been reclassified / restated for the purpose of comparison. However, there were no
material reclassifications / restatements to report except already disclosed in note 5.1 to the financial stalements.

46.2 Figures have been rounded off to the nearest thousand rupees.

47. DATE OF AUTHORISATION
These financial statements were authorized for issue on 5 March 2014 by the Board of Directors of the Bank.
h:.,{ F o™
g
p .94#1 ug)//\ (A A R
Director Director Birector |

Chief Execg ‘}(/
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Detalls of charity paid

ALBARAKA BANK (PAKISTAN) LIMITED

Annexure - If

2013 2012
==e-=- (Rupees ‘'000) ------

Charity equal to or in excess of Rs 100,000 was paid to the following organizations / individuals:

Indus Hospital

Citizens Foundation
Patient's Aid Foundation
Trust Schoal

Government of Punjab for the effectees of Balochistan Earthquake

Rising sun institute

Lahore Business Association For Rehabilitation
Shaukat Khanum Memorial Cancer Hospital
Care Foundation

Mukhtaran Rafiq Foundation

Diya Pakistan

Green Crescent Trust

Mayo Hospital

Sir Ganga Ram Hospital

Aziz Jehan Begum Trust

Marghzar Welfare Society

Jinhah Hospital

Nighaban Welfare Association

Koohl Goth Hospital

Lady Willington Hospital

Sina Health, Education & Welfare Trust
Afzal Memorial Thalassemia Foundation
Karachi Cricket Association of the Deaf
Clapp Hospital

Students starting LLB studies

Fatrid Foundation

Concern for children

Bunyad

Alamgir Welfare Trust International

Sundas Foundation

Miss Shaheen

Children Cancer

Hape NGO

Mr. Asad Ali

Miss Sheikh Ghazala

Bali Memorial Trust

Mr. Muhammad Nawaz

Bait-ul-Sukoon

Children Village

Children Hospital

Fatima Memorial Hospital

Liver Centre Faisalabad

Layton Rehmatullah Benevolent Trust (LRBT)
Carvan Of Life, Pakistan Trust

Patient Welfare Association Jinnah Hospital

11,000 -
10,600 -

10,000 200
6,000 -
3,000 .
1,170 -

1,000 500

1,000 500
1,000 -
1,000 -
1,000 -

200 100

200 100

200 200

100 100

200 100
100 -

200 300

300 300
600 -
416 -

668 800
200 -
200 -
450 -
200 -
150 -
200 -
500 -
500 -
100 -
500 -
500 -
100 -
100 -

- 250

- 100

- 100

- 300

- 500

- 500

- 120

- 250

- 300

- 279

53,654 5,699




